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May 15,2013
, ) /()
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan O

and the Honorable Council a
State House é@ 0

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services, Bureau of
Homeless and Housing Services to enter into an agreement;:with Harbor Homes, Inc., 45 High Street, Nashua, NH
03060, (Vendor #155358-B001), in an amount not to g;exceed $497.818, to provide services to homeless
individuals, effective July 1, 2013, or date of Govemorfand Executive Council approval, whichever is later,
through June 30, 2015. ‘

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in State Fiscal
Years 2014 and 2015 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets
with the authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and amend the related terms of the contract
without further approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-42-423010-7928 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERV;ICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, EMERGENCY SHELTERS

Fiscal Year Appropriation Class/Account : Class Title
2014 05-95-42-423010-7928 102-500731  Contracts for program services $148,852
2015 05-95-42-423010-7928 102-500731  Contracts for program services $148.852

Total $297,704

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

_Fiscal Year  Appropriation Class/Account : Class Title
2014 05-95-42-423010-7927 102-500731 Contracts for program services $200,114
EXPLANATION

Pursuant to this Agreement the vendor will be providing two distinct services to support homeless
individuals and families through the State Grant-In-Aid Homeless Assistance program and US Department of
Housing and Urban Development funded Supportive Housing program.




Her Excellency, Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

May 15, 2013
Page 2 of 3

Through New Hampsh1re Emergency Shelter State Grant-In-A1d funding the vendor will provide homeless
individuals with assistance in finding permanent housing, Qemployment counseling, substance abuse counseling,
assistance in accessing other community services, and emergency shelter. Monies for shelter operational costs
such as rent, staff salaries/benefits, utilities, insurance and supplies are included in this agreement. Such services
help negate instances where households are threatened by immediate homelessness. The emergency shelter
provides more than 9,000 bed nights each year to individuals and families who are homeless. These services
were subject to the State of New Hampshire Request for Proposal process.

Through the US Department of Housing and Urban Development funded Supportive Housing program the
vendor will provide a comprehensive supportive services network to provide for the unmet housing needs of 18
disabled individuals and will promote the ability of part1c1pants to live more independently. This service was
subject to the US Department of Housing and Urban Development application and award process. Funds are
administered by the Department. ,

A Request for Proposal for state funding was 1ssued at the annual NH Homeless Provider and Homeless
Fducation Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The Request for Proposal was also posted on the
Department of Health and Human Services’ website. Criteria for selection included: proposal includes all
elements and is assembled as required; program design and need for project; performance measures and
identified outcomes; coordination with community organizations and resources; involvement with Continuum of
Care/Local Service Delivery Area; soundness of approach; cost proposal, budget and leveraging of resources;
accurate and timely utilization of Homeless Management Information System,; staff experience and credentials;
compliance with rules, statutes and life safety codes; increase in bed capacity; and increase in
prevention/intervention or essential services. Each applying organization was required to submit a separate
proposal for each program, which allowed for budgets and. program models to be evaluated independently. Fifty
(50) separate proposals, from 35 organizations, were evaluated and scored.

This agreement also provides funds from the Deparﬁnent of Housing and Urban Development Supportive
Housing, Permanent Housing for the Homeless program 'via the Continuum of Care process for communities
seeking these funds.

In 1994, with input from providers throughout the country, the Department of Housing and Urban
Development developed the Continuum concept to support communities in their efforts to address the problems
of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic fashion. The Continuum serves
three main purposes: :

1. A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community;

2. A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness on a
year-round basis; and

3. An opportunity to submit an application to the Department of Housing and Urban Development for
resources targeting housing and support services for homeless individuals and families.

The Department of Housing and Urban Development scores the application and awards funding based on
their criteria. The Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services receives notification of the awards from the
Department of Housing and Urban Development several months later. Although law does not mandate the
Continuum, the process must be followed to access funding.

The vendor is one of eleven (11) New Hampshireiagencies receiving a competitive award for renewal
funding. This funding supports the Harbor Homes, Inc. Permanent Housing Program that provides permanent
housing and supportive services for eighteen (18) disabled individuals in Nashua.

The Bureau assures contract compliance and provider performance through the following:
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1) Annual compliance reviews are performed that include the collection of data relating to compliance with
administrative rules and contractual agreements;

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers, including various
demographic information and income and expense reports iflcluding match dollars; and

3) All providers funded for shelter, transitional housing, or outreach services will be required to maintain
timely and accurate data entry on the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, unless they
are required by law to use an alternate data collection. The NH Homeless Management Information System will
be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these
contracts. As of this date, the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence is the only
provider prohibited by NH RSA 173-B and RSA 173-C from providing client specific data into the NH Homeless
Management Information System. This provider will be required to provide all required reports through an
alternate data system, on the same schedule as other providérs.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine ‘not to approve these requests, shelter and homeless
prevention resources for people who are homeless may not be available in this community, and there will be an
increase in demand for services from the region’s local welfare authorities. Further, an ongoing project may not
be able to continue, causing eighteen (18) disabled individuals and families to become homeless and five (5) full-
time staff persons and one (1) half-time staff person from' this vendor to become unemployed. People who are
without housing and resources will resort to seeking shelter in places that are not fit for people to live in, or will
attempt to travel to shelters in other communities. This w111 increase the chances that people who are homeless
will be in danger of injury or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for health, education and treatment.
Numerous jobs would also be lost since the shelter and/or resource agency would have to close its doors or
drastically reduce staff.

Area served:  Greater Nashua region
Source of funds: 60% General and 40% Federal Funds.
In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support this

program.

Respectfully submitted,

Assgciate Jommissioner

Approved by: '
Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Serwbeé'M’ssiou 18 to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



A Request for Proposal for state funding was issued at the annual NH Homeless Provider and
Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The Request for Proposal was
also posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’ website.

Shelter Programs Evaluation Score| HMIS Utilization | Total Score
Laconia Area Community 98 9.8 107.8
Front Door Agency . 95 10 105
Families in Transition - Concord 92.5 10 102.5
Helping Hands Outreach Ministries ‘ 92 8.6 100.6
Families in Transition - Family Place/Amherst 90.5 10 100.5
New Horizons for New Hampshire : 90.5 9.5 100
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Keystone |
Hall) 90 9.8 99.8
Families in Transition - Lowell St } 89.5 10 99.5
Families in Transition - Family Place/Spruce St || 89.5 10 99.5
Bridge House ‘ 90.5 8.6 99.1
Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc 88.5 10 98.5
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire 88 10 98
The Way Home 88.5 9.4 97.9
Families in Transition - Family Willows/Millyard Il | 88 9.2 97.2
Families in Transition - Manchester Emergency | 86.5 10 96.5
Marguerite's Place, Inc 86.5 10 96.5
Harbor Homes Inc ; 86.5 9.8 96.3
Salvation Army - Laconia (Carey House) ! 87 9.1 96.1
Cross Roads House, Inc ; 845 10 94.5
Greater Nashua Interfaith Hospitality Network 85.5 8 93.5
My Friend's Place 82.5 9.5 92
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual .
Violence f 83 8 91
Samaritans (Mary's Place) 81 9 90
Southwestern Community Services - Claremont | 80.5 8.5 89
New Generations, Inc ; 79 9.6 88.6
Friends Program 78.5 10 88.5
First Congregational Church : 81.5 6.5 88
Salvation Army - Concord (McKenna House) : 78 10 88
Southwestern Community Services - Keene i 80.5 7 87.5
Headrest, Inc ; 79 47 : 83.7
Veteran Homestead, Inc 75.5 8 835
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc (Tyler |:
Blaine) ? 75.5 7.5 83

Prevention Programs . Evaluation Score

AIDS Response Seacoast 103

Southwestern Community Services 99

The Way Home | 99

NH Legal Assistance f 98.5

Harbor Homes, Inc i 98

St. John Neumann Church Outreach , 98

Front Door Agency : 97

Merrimack Valley Assistance P rogram 96.5

Belknap-Merrimack Communlty Action Program,

Inc - New Start 96




Strafford County Community Actlon Committee,

inc 95
Belknap-Merrimack Communlty Action Program,

Inc - Prevention 93
NH 211 (United Ways of New Hampshlre) Hotel 92.5
NH 211 (United Ways of New Hampshlre)

Hotline \ 92
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire 91
Southern New Hampshire Services 89
Southern New Hampshire Services (Rockingham

Program) 89
Tri-County Community Action Program Inc 71
Veteran Homestead, In¢c ‘i 61

Due to the quantity of proposals received, the reviewers were organized into twelve (12) teams,
which met and presented their final evaluations and scores. The review committee teams
included the following individuals:

Natalie Allen, BA, MBA, Retired NH Department of Health and Human Services
Employee — Over 30 years of social services most recently as a Community Relations
Manager, served on the Local Service Dellvery Areas of Concord and Laconia, and as a
member of the Balance of State Contlnuum of Care

Michael Bilson, BA, Program Planner I, Office of Consumer and Family Affairs, Bureau of
Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of
Health and Human Services

John Capuco, Psy. D, Administrator, Bureau of Developmental Services, Division of
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Christopher Cullinan, BA, MPA, Manager of Ryan White CARE Program, Division of
Public Health, NH Department of Health arjd Human Services

Sharon Drake, BS, Chief Executive Of'ﬁcer?: Serenity Place (an NCADD Affiliate)

Margaret Fogarty, MA, BA, Economic Justlce Project Coordinator, American Friends
Service Committee

Ellen Fries, BA, Concord Coalition to End Homelessness
Sherry Gould, Director, Wijokadoak, Inc

Bill Guinther, BA, Program Policy Analyst at New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority
(NHHFA)

Janet Horne, Business Systems Analyst |,/ Bureau of Behavioral Health, Division of
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

David Keller, Former Minister at Concord’s First Congregational Church

Janine A Lesser, BS, MS, Child Care Proéram Specialist IV, TANF Policy Unit, Division
of Family Assistance, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Sandra Matheson, Director, State Office \Zictim/\Nitness Assistance, NH Attorney
General’s Office

William McGonagle, Assistant Commissioher, NH Department of Corrections

Niki Miller, MS, Senior Project Associate éfit Advocates for Human Potential, formerly>
Administrator of Women Offenders for NH Department of Corrections



e Karen Orsini, MSN, RN, Director of Quality Improvement, Bureau of Behavioral Health,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human
Services

e Linda J Parker, BS, CPM, Program SpeC|aI|st IV, Division of Community Based Care
Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

e Bernadette Pelczar, BA, MSW, Social Worker
e Kimberly Perez, PhD, Family HIV Program TManager, Dartmouth-Hitchcock

¢ Myriam Roeder, Adoption Manager, Division of Child, Youth and Families, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

¢ Todd Ringelstein, Program Planning and R:eview Specialist, Division of Developmental
Services, NH Department of Health and Hu’man Services

¢ Michael Rogers, MHA, MT, MC, Assistant Admlnlstrator Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and
Human Services

e Marianne Savarese, BS, RN, Project Director of Health Cére for the Homeless Program

e Barbara Thorngren, M.Ed, Collaborative Educatlon Consultant for PeaceWorks New
*Hampshire, LLC

o Kiristina Toth, BA, Administrator, Family Connectlons Center, NH Department of
Corrections

e Sally Varney, BA, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of Community
Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

¢ Dave Villiotti, MS, Executive Director, Nash‘fua Children’s Home

¢ Donna Walker, BBA, MBA, Business Admiﬁistrator IV, Bureau of Behavioral Health,
Division of Community Based Care Serwces NH Department of Health and Human
Services .

¢ Kathleen Walton, Masters in Human Serwce Administration, Human Service Director,
Town of Salem

A funding distribution formula for State Grant-In-Aid was designed during March 2013, based on
the most current projections of State Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015 funding available at that time.
This total was approximately 4% more than the State Fiscal Years 2012 and 2013 total of State
Grant-In-Aid funding. One prevention program, Veteran Homestead, Inc, received a score of 61,
which was below the guideline score of 65; therefore they were only awarded level funding for
their program. One shelter program, Veteran Homestead Inc, was not funded, especially when
taking into consideration the placement of the propgsal in the rankings of the shelter program
scores, because the proposal was for a new shelter request and not a renewal shelter request.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: State Grant-In-Aid Funds and Supportive Housing Proigram
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION. .
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
Harbor Homes, Inc. 45 High Street
Nashua, NH 03060
1.5  Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 05-95-42-423010-7927 :
(603) 882-3616 05-95-42-423010-7928 June 30, 2015 $497,818.00
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 110 State Agency Telephone Number
Maureen U. Ryan, Bureau Administrator (603) 271-9197 l
. , i
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12  Name and Title oii' Contractor Signatory
Reler Yallehor, Psidont & UD

1.13 Acknow\ﬁgement State of Mﬁ County of Msbb(oua

On 5")|I5 before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the persori identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

1.13:1 blgnature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

; LAUREL A. LEFAVOR, Notary Public
i . My Commission Expires September 22, 2015
- [Seat U yZA

1.13.2 Nalne and Title of‘N/otary or Justice of the Pea

Laure/ L&ét yor /(/MV)/ beéw

1.14  State Agency Sign 1.15  Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

man y Ann &wq] EMmiSiton
N bt P

1.16 Aper the NHLID@Bdrtment of Administration, Dlvnsmn of Personnel (if appltcEBle)

By: Director, On:

1.17  Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Exjecution)

s e
By: Jeanne P Aeriin, Aonc, O (£ Mg 2003

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council '

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor’) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
Handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
UWnited States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2 4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION,

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers

- and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,

based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Algreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: Q !

Date: ) ﬁ/?((ﬁ




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit A,

SCOPE OF SERVICES
State Grant In Aid Program

1. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES: |

1.1. Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to comply with
the program narrative, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, for Services,
operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved by the Bureau of Homeless and
Housing Services, Office of Human Services, Department of Health and Human Services,
hereafter referred to as the State.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future Ieg|slat|ve action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may lmpactz'on the Services described herein, the State
has the right, following consultation with the Contractor, to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements for the funds provided under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are applicable
to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation. Appropriate
records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document actual funds received or denials of
funding from such public sources of funds.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by service modality
describing the number of unduplicated cases served units of services rendered, and staff
required to provide the service, as may be requ|red by the State. Monthly reports may be
required at the discretion of the State. Reports shaII include, but are not limited to, details of
progress and achievements toward the following key program outcomes:

1.4.1. 25% of program participants will exit the program to permanent housing.

1.4.2. The average length of stay in this program will be reduced by 20%.

1.4.3. 80% of shelter guests receive primary health care.

1.4.4. 85% of HMIS end-users will obtain training and recertification by the HMIS Project Team.

1.5. All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or
permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs under this
contract must be familiar with and follow NH HNIIS policy, including specific information that is
required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data entry. Current NH
HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the following website: http://www.nh-
hmis.org.

1.6. Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could result in the
delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or data entries are
confirmed by the State.

2. SERVICES:
The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will provide
services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:’

2.1. New Hampshire Emergency Shelter State Grant-In-Aid Program RSA 126-A:25, 126-A:27, 126-

A:28 and 126-A:29 as well as He-M 314

2.2. Contractor shall use the New Hampshire Emergency Shelter State Grant-In-Aid funds for:

O Prevention/intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent
homelessness. 7

E Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing, employment
counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing other community services,
and staff salaries and benefits.

& Operations Activities, including shelter operatlonal costs such as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor initials tll/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A

Supportive Housing Program

1.

3.

Services

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds from the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) Supportive Housmg Praogram, the Contractor shall provide a
permanent housing program that shall serve elghteen (18) homeless individuals with disabilities.
The goal of this program is to facilitate the movement of homeless individuals to permanent
housing and maximum self-sufficiency.

To be eligible for contract services, individuals must be homeless as defined in HUD regulations.
The Contractor must obtain and retain appropriate documentation.

The Contractor shall provide these services according to HUD regulations as outlined in Public
Law 102-550, the SHP Desk Guide, and other written HUD policies and directives.

Each program participant shall have an employment assessment and employment goals
included in the individual service plan, as appropriate.

Program Reporting Requirements

2.1.

2.2

2.3.

The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

2.1.1. Quarterly Progress Reports: Quarterly progress reports shall include the number of
participating individuals at the end of the quarter, the number of vacancies at the end of
the quarter, the number of individuals who have left the project during the quarter, the
number of new individuals who entered the project during the quarter, the status of
Project Activities performed, the outlook for completion of the remaining Project Activities
prior to the completion Date, and the changes, if any, which need to be made in the
Project or Project Activities. Quarterly reports shall be submitted to the Bureau of
Homeless and Housing Services (BHHS).' Quarterly reports are due no later than thirty
(30) days after the conclusion of the quarter.

2.1.2. Annual Progress Report: Within thirty (30) days after the Completion Date, an Annual
Progress Report (APR) shall be submitted to the BHHS that summarizes the results of
the Project Activities, showing in particular how the Project Activities have been
performed. The Annual Progress Report shall be in the form required or specified by the
State.

2.1.3. Other Reports as requested by the State

All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or

permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the New

Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs under this

contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific information that is

required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, 'and time required for data entry. Current NH

HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the following website: http://mww.nh-

hmis.org.

Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into NH-HMIS in a timely fashion could result in

the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or data entries are

confirmed by the BHHS.

Contract Administration

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.
3.4.

The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or trainings requested
by the BHHS. To the extent possible, BHHS shall notify the contractor of the need to attend
such meetings five working days in advance of each meeting.

The Bureau Administrator of BHHS or designee may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may not unreasonably interfere
with contractor performance.

The Contractor shall inform BHHS of any staffing changes

Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion of the
contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all
questions arising therefrom are resolved, whichever is later.

Page 2 of 4
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3.5. Changes to the contract services that do not affecz:t its scope, duration, or financial limitations
may be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the BHHS.

4. Financial
4.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Supportive Housing Program agreement value specmed in Exhibit B of this agreement from the
HUD Supportive Housing Program, for contract serwces
4.1.1. Operating expenses;
4.1.1.1. Eligible operating costs include maintenance and repairs (maintenance staff,
cleaning supplies, cleaning equment contracted services), operations staff
(salaries of staff not delivering services), utilities/fuel, equipment, supplies,
insurance (property, car health beneflts for operational staff), food for
participants, and furnishings. .
4.1.1.2. Ineligible costs include mortgage payments, rent, recruitment costs, staff
training, depreciation, and costs associated with the organization as a whole
rather than the supportive housin"g project.
4.1.1.3. Contract funds may be used to pay for up to seventy-five percent of the actual
operating costs.
4.1.2. Supportive services.
4.1.2.1. Eligible supportive services costs include salary and fringe benefits for direct
service and supervisory staff (as proportionate to time dedicated to the project),
furnishings used by direct serwce staff or participants, supplies used by direct
service program staff or part|C|pants transportation of participants and staff
when related to direct service, off ice equipment and expenses (as proportionate
to direct service), medical/dental care for participants, education, counseling,
case management, intervention, darly living skills, parenting skills, mental health
care, rent/security deposits or other housing search assistance for participants
exiting the program, substance abuse treatment, vocational training, and
employment assistance. Eligible|services are available to those individuals
actively participating in the permanent housing program.
4.1.2.2. Ineligible costs include staff tra|n|ng fundraising, conference attendance, and
court fines incurred by part|C|pants
4.1.2.3. Contract funds may be used to pay for up to eighty percent of the actual
supportive services costs. .
4.1.3. Leasing: Leasing may include leasing one: structure or leasing units scattered throughout
a community.
4.1.3.1. Rent paid may only reflect actual: costs and must be reasonable in comparison
to rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.
4.1.3.2. The portion of the rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-determined
fair market rents.
4.1.3.3: The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly, funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.
4.1.3.4. The Contractor may to pay the Iahdlord up to one months rent for any damages
to the units by participants. ‘
The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.
Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in' which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operatlon of the housing or services.
4.1.4. Administrative costs.
Administrative costs include costs assocrated with the accounting for the use of contract
funds, preparing required reports, and obtalnlng program audits.
4.2. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations and
policies. '
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4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials

4.2.1. Match requirements are to be cash and documented with each payment request.

4.2.2. Match requirements cannot be met through in-kind donations of goods and services.

The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and allowable
costs as stated in Section 4.1. The Contractor must have written approval from the State prior to
billing for any other expenses.

The Contractor may charge program participants. rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however, the
amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24 CFR
583.315). Other services such as cable, air conditlonlng telephone, Internet access, cleaning,
parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant’s. option.

The contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract or counted as match
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

w

Page 4 of 4
Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program
Exhibit B

ETHOD AND CONDITIONS PRE;CEENT TO PAYMENT

State Grant In Aid Program
The following financial conditions apply to the scope of serwces as detailed in Exhibit A — State Grant In
Aid Program.

This contract is funded 100% by the New Hampshire General Fund as follows:

NH General Funds:

SFY14 not to exceed $148,852.00
SFY15 not to exceed $148,852.00
Federal Funds; Not Applicable

1. PROGRESS REPORTS:
Semi-annual and annual financial and statistical progress reports which identify the status of the
Services performed, the outiook for completion of the remaining services prior to the Completion Date
and the changes, if any, which need to be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the
month following the end of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2. PROJECT COSTS; PAYMENT OF PROJECT COSTS; REVIEW BY THE STATE

2.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Services, as
determined by the State to be eligible and aIIowabIe for payment.

2.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general; provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to exceed and
for the specific time period specified above. ;

2.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Project Costs at the conclusion of
each monthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In no event shall the funds
provided exceed the amounts specified above. |

2.4. Review by the State, Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the Services,
and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.
Upon such review, the State shall disaliow any items of expense which are not determined to be
allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice
specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the
State disallows costs for which payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs.

3. LINEITEM TRANSFERS;
No more than 10% of funds in each budget line can be transferred between line items as appears on
the budget page without the prior written authorization from the State. Any expenditures which
exceed the approved budgets shall be solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However,
such excess expenditures may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is
permissible by this Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing
the Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to incur
additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior written authorization
from the State

Page 1 of 4
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State Grant In Aid Program Budget detail

EXPENSE BUDGET for SFY14 and SFY15:

EXPENSE ITEM Funded by this Contractor Match
Agreement
Prevention/Intervention i NA NA
Rent with eviction notice, mortgage with ’
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect
notice, and other activities fo prevent
homelessness

Essential Services (Shelter Program) $78,100.00 $78,100.00
Assistance in finding permanent housing, i

employment counseling, substance abuse
counseling, assistance in accessing other
community services and staff salaries and
benefits ;
Operations (HMIS) $219,604.00 $219,604.00
Operational costs such as rent, utilities, :
insurance, supplies and taxes

TOTALS $297,704.00 $297,704.00
TOTAL Agreement Funds + Match $595,408.00

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials H ‘/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Supportive Housing Program
The following financial conditions apply to the scope of serwces as detailed in Exhibit A — Supportive
Housing Program.

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made available
under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA}, as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #; 14.235

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Supportive Housing Program

Total Amount Supportive Housing Program;

SFY14: not to exceed $200,114. 00

Funds allocation under this agreement for Supportive Housing Program;
Operating expenses: $83,913.00

Supportive services: $73,152.00
Leasing: $38,400.00
Administrative costs: $4.649.00

Total program amount:  $200,114.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund the
Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Supportive Housing
Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time perlod specified above.

2. REPORTS.
As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to submit the
following:

2.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance with
the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies of the audited financial
report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion of said report to the State.

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within ninety
(90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited financial report shall
be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing the guidelines set forth in
“Standards for Audit of Governmental Orgamzatlons Program Activities, and Functions” by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW;BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time
to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to fund the Contractbr for operations, supportive services, leasing
and administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development Supportive Housing Project, Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless
(Public Law 102-550) in an amount not to exceedras specified above. Reimbursement requests
for all Project Costs shall be submitted on a monthly basis and accompanied by an invoice from
the Contractor for the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request
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form as designated by the State, which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor. The
Contractor shall provide additional financial information if requested by the State to verify
expenses.

3.3. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the Services,
and upon receipt of the Quarterly Reports, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.
Upon such review the State shall disallow any items of expenses that are not determined to be
allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice
specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the
State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such
costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are subject to
recapture pursuant to 24 CFR Subsection 576.55. The funds authorized to be expended under
this Agreement shall be used only for operations, xsupportlve services, leasing and administration
or reimbursement for expenditures for operatlons supportive services, leasing and
administration, provided by the Contractor for the: prOJect period and operating years of the
Supportive Housing Program as approved by HUD and in accordance with the Supportive
Housing Program Regulations, published at 24 CFR Part 583.

4, USE OF GRANT FUNDS. ,

4.1. The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs, up to the not to exceed amount for the
Supportive Housing Program as specified in this Exhibit, as defined by HUD under the
provisions of P.L. 102-550 and applicable regulations.

4.2. The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases or the
creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract price. Such
amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval from the State.

4.3, Conformance to OMB Circular A-110; Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements, and principles specified in OMB Circular A-110.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applles to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with Attachment G
of A-102, “Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or such equivalent system
as the State may require. Requests for payment ¢ shaII be made according to EXHIBIT B, Section
3.2 of this Agreement.
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Special Provisions

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this eontract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments in whole or in part, under this Agreement
are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent
changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or
executive action that reduces, eliminates, or othervvnse modifies the appropriation or availability of
funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in
whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of
appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reductlon termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the r|ght to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into
the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Add the following to Paragraph 5:

5.5. Upon execution of the Contract and satisfaction by the Contractor of any conditions in the
Notification of Funding Approval, the State shall provide the Contractor with the funds, in
accordance with EXHIBIT B of this Contract Agreement in the amount specified in the attached
Notification of Funding Approval.

5.6. Funds obligated under this Contract shall not be increased but may be decreased in
accordance with this Contract and 24 CFR 841 400(b) and (c).

3. Add the following to Paragraph 6.1:

6.1. In connection with the performance of the Servnces the Contractor shall comply with all
statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal, state, country, or municipal authorities which
impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights,
equal opportunity and housing iaws, Section 1Q1 (9), P.L. 99-500, Title VIl of the Civil Rights
Act of 1968, and Executive Order No. 11063, as implemented by the regulations at 24 CFR
Part 107.

4. Add the following to Paragraph 6.:
6.4. The Contractor certifies as follows:

6.4.1. that the grant funds provided pursuant to this Contract shall be used in accordance
with the requirements and provisions of this Contract, the Supportive Housing
Program regulations, and the Application including the Fair Housing and Equal
Opportunity Certifications and the Appilcant Certifications contained in Exhibit 4 of the
Application;

6.4.2. that the grant funds shall not be used to replace State or local assistance program
funds used to assist homeless persons( ‘during the calendar year preceding the date of
the Application or were designated for such use through an official action of the
applicable governmental entity during the calendar year preceding the date of the

Application;

6.4.3. that no more than five percent of the grant funds may be used for administrative
expenses;

6.4.4. that, except as provided at 24 CFR Subsection 573.33(1)(4)(ii), the Contractor shall
not:

6.4.4.1. conduct renovation, major rehabilitation, or conversion of any building listed
on the National Register of Historic Places; located in an historic district;
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immediately adjacent to a property listed on the National Register; or
deemed to be eligible for inclusion on the National Register by the State
Historic Preservation Officer;

6.4.4.2. conduct any such activity taking place in a 100-year flood plain designated by
map by the Federal Emergency Management Agency;

6.4.4.3. conduct any such activity which will jeopardize the continued existence of an
endangered or threatened specnes designated by the U.S. Department of the
Interior's Fish and Wildlife Service or by the U.S. Department of Commerce’s
National Maritime Fisheries Service, or affecting the critical habitat of such as
species; and

6.4.4.4. be inconsistent with HUD'’s enwronmental standards at 24 CFR Part 51 or
with the State’s Coastal Zone Management Plan;

6.4.5. that the Contractor shall make it known that use of the facilities and services is
available to all on a nondiscriminatory basis. Where the procedures that the
Contractor intends to use to make known the availability of services are unlikely to
reach persons of any particular race, color, religion, age, creed, sex, handicap, or
national origin who may qualify for such services, the Contractor must establish
additional procedures that will ensure that these persons are made aware of the
facility and services;

6.4.6. that the submission of applications for grants is authorized under State or local law
and that the Contractor possesses Iegal authority to carry out the grants activities in
accordance with applicable law and regulatlons of the U.S. Department of Housing .
and Urban Development;.

6.4.7. that the Contractor shall comply with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity
requirements of 24 CFR 841.330(a);

6.4.8. that the Contractor shall comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969,
42 U.S.C. 4332, implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 50 and the Coastal Barriers
Resources Act of 1982 (16 U.S.C. 3601); and

6.4.9. that the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Lead-Based Paint
Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846) as described in 24 CFR 841.330(d).

5. Add the following to Paragraph 7.:

7.4.

7.5.

It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that in discharging its obligations under this
Agreement, the Contractor shall ensure thatino person (1) who is an employee, agent,
consultant, officer, or elected or appointed off|C|aI of the Contractor, subcontractor, or the State
that receives Supportive Housing Grant amounts who exercises or has exercised any functions
or responsibilities with respect to assisted activities or (2) who is in a position to participate in a
decision making process or gain inside mformatlon with regard to such activities, may obtain a
personal or financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract,
subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for him or
herself or those with whom he or she has family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for
one year thereafter.

The Contractor shall not employ, engage for services, award contracts or fund any contractors
or subcontractors during any period of their debarment, suspension or placement in ineligibility
status as determined pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

6. Add the following to Paragraph 8.:

8.3.

8.4.

The State may deobligate amounts for any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or a moderate
rehabilitation grant if the total costs of the acqu|S|t|on/rehab|htat|on or moderate rehabilitation
are less than the approved grant.

The State may deobligate funds made avallable under this Contract if any proposed
acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabllltatlon activities are not begun or completed in
accordance with the development schedule contamed in the Application or within a reasonable
time thereafter.
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8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

8.8.

8.9.

The Contractor shall repay the full amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or
moderate rehabilitation grant if it fails to use the structure for supportive housing for the
homeless for a ten year period following the initial occupancy with funding under this
Agreement.

For each full year that the Project is used for supportlve housing for the homeless foliowing the
expiration of the ten year period, the amount of the acquisition/rehabilitation advance that the
Contractor will be required to repay will be reduced by one-tenth of the original advance.

If the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless for twenty years following the
date of initial occupancy, the Contractor will not be required to repay any portion of the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance given under this Agreement.

Upon the Contractor's written request, the State may determine that the Project is no longer
needed as transitional housing for the homeless and may approve an alternate use of the
Project for the direct benefit of lower income persons. in such event, for purposes of
determining the Contractor's repayment obligations, the Project will continue to be treated a
supportive housing for the homeless as long as it is used for the approved alternate purpose.

if the Project is taken by eminent domain or seizure, the Contractor must repay the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant to the extent that funds
are available from the eminent domain or other proceeding.

7. Add the following to Paragraph 9.;

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

Between the effective date and a date five years after the Completion Date, at any time during
the Contractor's normal business hours, and as often as the State shall reasonably demand,
the Contractor shall make available to the State all data for examination, duplication,
publication, translation, or for any other purpose. Nothing in this Subparagraph shall require
the Contractor to make available data that would violate any statute, other provisions of this

Agreement, or agreements with unrelated third parties. The term “Contractor” includes all

persons, natural or fictional, who are controlled by, under common ownership with, or an

affiliate of, the entity identified as the Contractor in Paragraph 1.3. of the General Provisions of
this Agreement.

During the performance of the Project Act|v1t|es and for a period of five (5) years after the

Completion Date, the Contractor shall keep the following records and accounts:

9.5.1. Records of Direct Work: Detailed records of all direct work performed by its personnel
under this Agreement.

9.5.2. Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and other statistical data evidencing and
permitting a determination to be made by the State of all Project Costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor and all income received or collected by the
Contractor during the performance of the Project Activities. The said records shall be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices acceptable to the
State, and which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, shall
include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original invoices, vouchers,
bills, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in kind contributions, labor
time cards, payrolls and other records requested or required by the State.

9.5.3. Contractor and Subcontractor Records: The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
preserve and require each of its contractors and subcontractors to establish, maintain,
and preserve property management project performance, financial management and
reporting documents and systems,; and such other books, records, and other data
pertinent to the project as the State' may require. Such records shall be retained for a
period of five (5) years following completlon of the project and receipt of finai payment
by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all questions arising therefrom are
resolved, whichever is later. '

Audits and Inspections: During the performance of the Project Activities and the five (5) year

retention period, at any time during normal business hours and as often as the State, HUD, or

the Comptroller General of the United States, together or separately, may deem necessary, the

Contractor shall make availabie to the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller

General, as requested, all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The
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8.

10.

Contractor shall permit the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller General,
collectively or separately, to audit, examine and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other invoices,
materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other information relating to all matters
covered in this Agreement.

Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract Termination, is amended by adding the

following language:

10.1. The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2. In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with Stateé and shall promptly provide detailed information
to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by
the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide
ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4. In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transmoned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about
the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

Add the following to Paragraph 14:

14.4. The Contractor shall obtain property, casualty or hazard insurance in an amount at least equal
to the amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant
provided to the Contractor. The Contractor;shall assure that such insurance remains in full
force during the.term of the commitment to provide supportive housing for the homeless.

Add the following to Paragraph 20:
20.1. DEVELOPMENT

20.1.1. The Contractor assures that it has control of the site and/or structure to be used for
the Project as described in the Appllcatlon and EXHIBIT A of this Contract.

20.1.2. The Contractor shall keep and maintain such books, records, and other documents as
required by the State as may be necessary to reflect and disclose fully the amount and
disposition of grant funds, and the total cost of activities paid for, in whole or in part,
with grant funds.

20.2. OPERATION

20.2.1. The Contractor agrees that it will: facilitate the provision of necessary supportive
services to the residents of the Project.

20.2.2. The Contractor shall assure that the Project will be operated in accordance with the
Project Sponsor Executive Ofﬁcer Certifications contained in EXHIBIT 4 of the
Application.

20.2.3. The Contractor shall operate the PrOJect as transitional housing for homeless persons
for a ten-year period following the initial occupancy with grant funds provided pursuant
to this Contract.

20.2.4. In the event the Project is not operated as supportive housing for the homeless for ten
years following the initial occupancy with grant funds as provided in Paragraph 1.8.
above, the Contractor shall repay the full amount of the grant funds in accordance with
Paragraph 8. of this Contract. '

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C Contractor Initials ‘V
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20.2.5.

20.2.6.

20.2.7.

20.2.8.

The Contractor shail assure that residents in the Project will be charged rent in
accordance with section 3(a) of the United States Housing Act of 1937, which requires
residents to pay the highest of (1) 30 percent of the family’s monthly income (adjusted
in accordance with 24 CFR 841.320); (2) 10 percent of the family’s monthly income; or
(3) if the family is receiving payments for welfare assistance from a public agency and
a part of the payments, adjusted in accordance with the family’s actual housing costs,
is specifically designated by the agency to meet the family’s housing costs, the portion
of the payments that is designated.

The Contractor shail conduct an ongoing assessment of the supportive services
required by the residents in the Project.

The Contractor shall provide a residential supervisor, as specified in the Application,
who will facilitate the adequate provision of supportive services to the residents of the
housing throughout the term of the commltment to operate the Project as supportive
housing for the homeless.

The Contractor shall provide safe and sanitary housing and shall comply with all State
and local housing codes, licensing requirements and other requirements regarding the
condition of the structure and the operation of the Project.

20.3. SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM COVENANTS

20.3.1.

20.3.2.

20.3.3.

If the structure used for supportive housing is owned or leased by the Contractor,
restrictions regarding the use of the structure will be contained in a covenant, running
with the land recorded in the land records of the jurisdiction in which the structure is
located.

The covenant running with the land, .required in Paragraph 20.3.1 above, must state
that the owner and his or her successors, assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall, if
the Project is not used as supportive housing for homeless persons for ten years
following initial occupancy with contract funds, the owner, his/her successors and
assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall be required to repay the full amount of the
grant unless HUD determines that the Project is no longer needed for use as
supportive housing for homeless persons and approves the use of the Project for the
direct benefit of lower income persons.

The Contractor shall ensure that the covenants required by Paragraph 20.2.5 above,
are recorded prior to the commencement of any acquisition or rehabilitation activity,
for a Project receiving a rehabilitation advance or a moderate rehabilitation grant, or,
for a Project receiving an acquisition advance, recorded immediately after the
recording of the deed for the structure acquired with the acquisition advance.

20.4. OTHER PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS
if a structure rehabilitated with grant funds is leased from a religious organization, the
Contractor shall ensure that the lease contains the following provisions:

20.4.1

20.4.2.

20.4.3.

20.4.4.

20.4.5.

20.4.6.

CA/DHHS/100213

the leased premises will be used exclusively for secular purposes and be available to
all persons regardless of religion; and

the lease payments will not exceed the fair market rent of the structure without the
rehabilitation; and :

the cost of improvements that benefit any portion of the structure that is not used for
the provision of supportive housing for the homeless is allocated to and paid for by the
religious organization, and

unless the lessee, or a successor lessee acceptable to the State, retains the use of
the leased premises for a wholly secular purpose for at least the useful life of the
improvements, the lessor will pay to the lessee, within a reasonable time, an amount
equal to the residential value of the improvements, and

the Contractor shall comply with the policies, guidelines and requirements of OMB
Circular Number A-87 and A-102 as set forth in 24 CFR Part 85, except the
requirements of 24 CFR 85.24 are modified by 24 CFR 841.125 and the requirements
of 24 CFR 85.31 are modified by 24 CFR 841.310 and 841.315, and

the Contractor's financial management system shall provide for audits in accordance
with 24 CFR Part 44, and

Exhibit C Contractor Initials
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20.4.7. the Contractor shall keep any records and make any reports that the State may
require. Estimates for the cost of: acquisition and/or rehabilitation or moderate
rehabilitation of the Project shall be supported by documentation on file and
maintained for at least three years of operation with funding under this program.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C Contractor Initials /
Page 6 of 6
Date 5 7 /



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit C-1

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL? PROVISIONS

1. Retroactive Payments — Individual Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this.Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any services provided to any individual
prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the
Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or
(except as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is
eligible for such services.

2. Retroactive Payments — Contractor Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any costs incurred for any purposes
prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement.

3. Audit Requirement

The Contractor shall deliver to the State, at the address set forth in Section 1.2 of these General
Provisions, an independent audit performed by a Certified Public Accountant, of the Contractor, including
the funds received under this Agreement.

The following requirement shall apply if the Contractor is a State or Local Government: If the federal
funds received under this or any other Agreement from ahy and all sources exceeds $25,000 in the
aggregate in a one year fiscal period the required audit shall be performed in accordance with the
provisions of OMB Circular A-128, Single Audits of State'and Local Governments.

4. Credits

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other materials prepared during or resuiting
from the performance of the services or the Agreement shall include the following statement: “The
preparation of this (report, document, etc.) was financed ;under an Agreement with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, with
funds provided in part or in whole by HUD.”
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIV:IDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS -
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and published as Part I of the May 25, 1990 Federal Reqister (pages 21681-
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub- -contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awa{ds the grant. Faise certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled 'substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
Q)] The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace,
2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
3 Any available drug counseiing, rehabllltatlon and employee assistance programs;
and
4 The penalties that may be imposéd upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: M
Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requ»rements )
January 2009 Date; o212
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(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); .

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee: will

%)) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee: or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federai agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

M Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted
Q) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other a:ippropriate agency,

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), {b), (c), (d), (&), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check []if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Hoxloor Yomes Tnc.  From: To:

(Contractor Name) (Period Covered by this Certification)

Po e alonan . Pvosidont é o

(Name & Title of Authorized Contractor Representative)

ij L/\_/ sla1z

(Contractor Repres/e_rftatlve Signatare) . (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor lnitialsé V
Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requ1rements l [
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT E
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prov13|ons agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS ‘
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: through

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

(2) Ifany funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this, certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was

made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction

lmposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject
‘ 3 than $100 000 for each such failure,

"o \ex Yoo Lot

(ContractorRepresentative Signature) 3 (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Hadhoe Momoes. Toe . 3511]13
(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: ! V
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,

Suspension,

and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's

representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is
providing the certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human
Services' (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of
the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify
such person from participation in this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DHHS determined to enter into j_chis transaction. If it is later determined that the
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default. ‘

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submltted if at any time the prospective primary
participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred;” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions
and Coverage sections of the rules |mpIement|ng Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76.
See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by
DHHS. ‘

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials; VU
Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other ResponS|b|I|ty Matters

January 2009
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The prospective primary participant further jagrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all iower tier covered transactlons and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction:that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into.a lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
terminate this transaction for cause or default,

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

(1)

(2)

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and
its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense .in connection with obtaining, ‘attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or ai contract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen
property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (I)(b) of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective partlcnpant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
(contract).

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operationé Contractor Initials: qh/
Standard Exhibit F —
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal {contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal
department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it
will include this clause entitied “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

7l X4 ‘ ‘ ,

(Contractor Representati inature) (AuthofizedContrator Representative Name & Title)

Yo lor Mones ne. 51113

(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: Vﬂ/
Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters ’ ,
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: ;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

: L QXY X(oll@Y\Q (&)
(Cont Xetor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Wadoor Momes Soe. 511)13
(Contractor Name) ' (Date)
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:k
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STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONIVIENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the: imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with al, applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

W Doley ollohor Vrosidont & CED

(Cont\aétor Representatlve Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representatlve Name & Title)
docoor Momes e . SARITES

(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: f"/

Standard Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke s—l [

January 2009 Date: i ] l 5
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE'AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

@

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Definitions.
“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.
13400,

“Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“Health Care Operations™ shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501. A

“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIIl, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164. ,

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

Standard Exhibit | = HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials; W

September 2009 .
Page 10f 6 Date: 519 /I?
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“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “prdtected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. '

“Secretary ” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected /health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Informz}tion.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall:not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: _
L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
1L As required by law, pursuant to the tefms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of ariy breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such @isclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement . Contractor Initials: g%_/

September 2009
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If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI'in violation of such additional restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

Business Associate shall report to the designated: Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402. ‘

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set

forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity%to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the}Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524,

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: QA/

September 2009
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Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in' connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. . If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or all! PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR
Section 164.508. ‘

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business "Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed:to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: h

September 2009 ;
Page 4 of 6 Date: 5/7//3




)

(6)

Page of

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the
Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Pri\facy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is nécessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Prlvacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhlblt I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
can be given effect without the invalid term or condltlon to this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: KV

September 2009
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

DHES - umtmc,ium

Wovoor  Homesx TnC.

The State Agency Name

W/m/m/

Name of the Contractor

AR

Slgnature of AuthofiZéd I{epresent

o bon Coome=y

Sl\'\r{ature of Authoized Representatlve

ol Yoo\

Name of Authorized Representat(ve

)‘(f'fé(/«'a}("? C(Mm:‘ 55w A

Name of Authorized Representative

Peesidons & 0O

Title of Authorized Representative

S ///}

Title of Authorized Representative

511113

Date

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 6 of 6

Date

Contractor Initials: QM
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already aivailable through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Exeéutive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification: ‘

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply; with all applicable provisions of the Federal

Financja ntability/and Transparency
uj %w Yooy Osident & CFD
(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authoriz‘ed Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Nacdoor Hoomes, 3. 51103
(Contractor Name) (Date)

Contractor initials: _If_‘_/___
Date: __ S ,’7’ 13
Page # of Page#_




NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 3- \Q{Q,Ll 357

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed.fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

\/ NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19862
NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows: :

Name: ___ Amount:
Name: __ : Amount:
Name: ____ Amount:
Name: __ Amount:
Name: Amount:

Contractor initials: W/

pate:_ S |7/ 1z
Page # of Page #




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Corporation withc}ut Seal)

L Lovucie.  Goousera , do hereby certify that:

(Name of Clerk of tRe Corporation; cannot be contract sugnatory)

1. Iam a duly elected Clerk of Houwlor Homeg Tne .
(Corporation Name)
2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of
Directors of the Corporation duly held on ")\’I I 2
(Date)

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire,
acting through its Department of Health and Human S«{rvices, , for the provision of

b Y VS services.

RESOLVED: That the _ ¢usidanmyt & CED

{Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enﬁter into the said contract with the State

and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any

amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or
appropriate,

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect

as of the _#Nday of _{pMa 5; , 2013
{Date Contract Sign&el)

4. K\?Q}((‘( Yo\\q oy is the duly elected Q‘OZS\M(T\' a (20

{(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)
{Signature of Clerk of % Corporation)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of H"s'!!Sbﬂmw§b :

The forgoing instrument was acknowiedged before me ihis - [‘H" day of M%, 20 {3,

By ol Goa, :
{Name of Clerk of®he Corporation) W \ﬁ&
S L)

Notary Publlc/Jus e of The Peace)

of the Corporation.

L f Commission Expires:
- : E)J LA LEFAVORNotary Public
T e . My Commission Expires September 22, 2015
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management Page 1 of 1

Certificate of Vote Without Seal



State of Nefo Hampshire
 Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

T, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Harmpshire, do hereby
certify that HARBOR HOMES, INC. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed
February 15, 1980. 1 further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREQF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 1% day of April A.D. 2013

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




’ ®
ACORD
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
5/6/2013

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND‘l CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER
FIAI/Cross Insurance
1100 Elm Street

GONTACT Tara Dean, CIC
PHONE _  (603) 669-3218
E\E')w[ﬁauéss; tdean@crossagency.com

TR Nol: (603) 645-4331

i INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Manchester NH 03101 INSURERA Hanover Ins Group
INSURED INSURER B :
Harbor Homes, Inc. INSURER C :

INSURER D :
45 High Street INSURERE :
Nashua NH 03060 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:CL134482775 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL|SUBR

POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE WVD POLICY NUMBER | (MWDBYYYY) | (MIDBIYYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY : EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
< | DAMAGE TO RENTED 1 000.0
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea ocourrence) | $ ’ . 000
A | cLAMSMADE OCCUR ZBV970714700 [10/1/2012 [10/1/2013 | yep gxp (Any one person) | $ 10,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 3,000,000
X | roLicy RO Loc $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY {Ea accident) $ 1,000,000
A ANY AUTO . BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ﬁblrrgg\lNED §8¥5gULED AHV970600300 110/1/2012 [10/1/2013 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
X NON-OWNED 1 PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
Uninsured motorist combined | $ 1,000,000
X | UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 5,000,000
a EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 5 5,000,000
pep | X | ReTenTION S 10,000 UHV970913300 10/1/2012 [10/1/2013 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION ' WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? D N/A
{Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYER $
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $
A | Professional ZBV970714700 10/1/2012 [10/1/2013 | 1,000,000 Ea Wrongful Act
excl Harbor Homes Clinic 3,000,000 Aggregate

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more  space is required)
Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special’ provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

CANCELLATION

SHdULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CIC/TXD 'T;M c. 'D-tu—-

Tara Dean,

ACORD 25 (2010/05)
INSD025 12010051 04

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

Tha ACORN nama and laan ara ranictarad marke nf ACORN




Client#: 496014 HARBOHOM

ACORD.  CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE T SI062013

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. )

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER C&RME\CT
USI Insurance Sves of NE, Inc. wg,er‘Eo, Exy; 603 625-1100 | m)é’ No):
PO Box 6360 E-MAIL
ADDRESS:
Manchester, NH 03108-6360 : INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
603 625-1100 insurer A : QBE Insurance Corporation 39217
INSURED INSURER B :
Harbor Homes, Inc. i
INSURER C :
45 High Street
INSURER D :
Nashua, NH 03064 )
INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY; CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL|SUBR| T POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP i
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR |WVD POLICY NUMBER | (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PAMARE TORENTED o) |8
| CLAIMS-MADE D OCCUR . MED EXP (Any one person) 3
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $
GENERAL AGGREGATE $
GEN'L. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: : PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $
POLICY TR Loc $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY %2'\45335&) SINGLE LIMIT R
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED .
AUTOS AUTOS ) BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED . PROPERTY DAMAGE $
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED ‘ ‘ RETENTION § $
WORKERS COMPENSATION : WC STATU- OTH-
A AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY vIN QWC3000056 11/26/2012|11/26/2013 |TORY LIMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE L. ACCIDENT
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A E.L. EACHACC $500,000
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $500,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - PoLicy Livir | $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedu:le, If more space is required)
** Supplemental Name **

Harbor Homes I, Inc.
Harbor Homes lll, Inc.
Welcoming Light, Inc.
Healthy At Home, Inc.
(See Attached Descriptions)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
Department of Health & Human THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
Services ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Office of HumanServices :
105 P|easant St AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord, NH 03301

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
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HH Mission and Overview Page 1 of 1

Harbor Homes, Inc.

Mission Statement

To create and provide quality residential and supportive services for persons (and their families)
challenged by mental iliness and homelessness.

Overview

* A private, nonprofit agency, Harbor Homes is a beacon for people challenged by
mental iliness and/or homelessness or chronic homelessness.

® Built upon a core belief that individuality, dignity, self-respect and a safe place to
live are key to a person's ability to contribute to society. ﬁore

Harbor Homes, Inc

5 Year Goals and Objectives

Back to Mission Statement and Overviews

http://weblibrary harborhomes.org/agency%20overview%20and%20structure/harbor%20ho... 5/6/2013



HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(Harbor Homes, Inc., HH Ownership, Inc., Welcoming Light, Inc., Healthy At Home, Inc., Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc.,

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc., $outhern NH HIV Task Force)

Treasurer
(Chair, Finance Committee)
(Facilities Committee)

David Aponovich
2 Indiana Drive
Nashua, NH 03060
(H) 883-2168

(C) 897-9920
(2nd term +)

davidaponovich@gmail.com

Vice Chair of the Board

(Executive Committee)

Thomas I. Arnold, Il —E
14 Victory Drive
Merrimack, NH 03054
(H) 429-0833

(0O) 624-6523

(2nd term +)

tom.arnold3@myfairpoint.net

(Chair, Resource/Development/
Planning Committee)
(HCC Oversight Committee)

Vincent Chamberlain - (6
2 Proctor Hill Road
Brookline, NH 03033

(H) 673-4510

(C) 860-4470

(1st term)

vincechamberlain@yahoo.com

(Resource/Development/
Planning Committee)

Pastor Geoff DeFranca -
Community Chapel

5 St. Laurent St.

Nashua, NH 03064

(W) 883-8345

(1st term)

pastorgeoff@community-chapel.org

Laurie Des Rochers - {6
323 South Willow Street
Manchester, NH 03103
(H) 641-5905

(C) 661-5555

(1st term)

(Facilities Committee)

laurie@dre-pro.com

Robert Fischer - (65} Chair of the Board

1 Devonshire Place
Apt. 3606

Boston, MA 02109
(C) 809-3825

(2nd term +)

(Resource/Development/
Planning Committee)
bobfischer@me.com

Secretary
(Governance Committee)
(HCC Oversight Committee)

Laurie Goguen - )
56 Tyler St., Apt. 810
Nashua, NH 03060

(C) 401-1365

(1st term)

Alphonse Haettenschwiller - (6/15) (Finance Committee)
55 Kent Lane, Apt. L-107 (HCC Oversight Committee, Chair)
Nashua, NH 03062
(H) 883-0697

(2nd term)

ahaettenschwiller@comcast.net

Revised 5/13

Robert Kelliher -
7 Tanager Court
Merrimack, NH 03054
(C) 345-0200

(0) 424-0066

(2nd term)

Lynn King - {BZ16)
7 Ipswich Circle
Nashua, NH 03063
(H) 809-14381

(C) 674-8373

(1st term)

Captain James Lima - )
Nashua Police Department
P.O. Box 785

Nashua, NH 03061

(W) 594-3526

(C) 966-7099

(1st term)

Sean McGuinness - (@
30 Shelburne Road
Nashua, NH 03060
(0) 577-4500

(1st term)

Dan Proulx - {6i6)
149 Barretts Hill Rd
Hudson, NH 03051

(C) 978-512-0403

(1st term)

Dan Sallet - (G2}
33 Highland Ave.
Ayer, MA 01432
(O) 885-3840

(C) 566-8577

(1st term)

Dean Shalhoup - (G/i3)
14 Skyline Drive
Nashua, NH 03062

(C) 759-5100

(15t term)

Trent Smith - {6]
33 Middle Street
Ambherst, NH 03031
(H) 673-7937

(2nd term)

(Chair, Facilities Committee)
(Governance Committee)

bjkelliher@msn.com

(Resource/Development/
Planning Committee)

Lynn.king@nemoves.com

(Governance Committee)
(Facilities Committee)

limaj@nashuapd.com

(Executive Committee)

Sean@mortgagetraders.com

danp@monument.us.com

(Finance Committee)

daniel.w.sallet@baesystems.com

(Resource/Development/
Planning Committee)

nashuascoop@comcast.net

(Chair, Governance Committee)

(HCC Oversight Committee)

trentasmith@yahoo.com




FULL SALARY AMOUNT FOR EACH OF THE KEY EMPLOYEES,
ALONG WITH THE PERCENTAGE OF EACH SALARY TO BE PAID FROM
THIS AWARD

Name:

Peter Kelleher
Carol Furlong
Ana Pancine

Brian Boyer

Position:

Executive Director ~ $1 15,856

Assistant Director

Salary:

$93,496

Financial Specialist $ 50,000

Program Manager

$40,019

% to be Paid
From this Award:

1.1%

1.1%

3.0%

20.0%



HARBOR HOMES, INC.
Emergency Shelter
McKinney Grant
May 6, 2013

SALARIES OF KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

% Paid From

Name Job Title Salary This Grant
Peter Kelleher President & CEO - $115,856 2.56%
Carol Furlong Vice President, Operations § 93,496 2.56%
Ana Pancine Financial Specialist - § 50,000 2.56%

Christopher Gartland Program Manager $ 40,997 10.67%



PETER J. KELLEHER, CCSW, LICSW

Nashua, NH 03060

Telephone: ¢
Fax: (603) 595-7414
E-mail: p.kelleher@harborhomes.org

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2006-Present
2002-Present
1997-Present
1995-Present
1995-Present
1982-Present

2003-2006

1980 - 1982

1979 - 1980

1978 - 1979

1977 - 1979

1976

1971 - 1976

President & CEQ, Southern NH HIV Task Force

President & CEQ, GNCA, Inc. Nashua, NH

President & CEQ, Healthy At Home, Inc., Nashua, NH

President & CEQ, Milford Regional Counseliné Services, Inc., Milford, NH

President & CEO, Welcoming Light, Inc., Nashua, NH

President & CEO, Harbor Homes, Inc., Nashua, NH

Currently employed as chief executive officer for nonprofit corporation (and affiliates) providing
residential, supported employment, and social club‘L‘ services for persons with long-term mental illness
and/or homeless. Responsible for initiation, develbpment, and oversight of 33 programs comprising a
$10,000,000 operating budget; proposal development resulting in more than $3,000,000 in grants annually;
oversight of 330 management and direct care proféssionals.

Consultant

Providing consultation and technical assistance throughout the State to aid service and mental health
organizations

Real Estate Broker, LeVaux Realty, Cambridge, MA
Successful sales and property management specialist.

Clinical Coordinator, Task Oriented Communit;ies, Waltham, MA

Established and provided comprehensive rehabilitation services to approximately 70 mentally ill/ mentally
retarded clients. Hired, directly supervised, and trained a full-time staff of 20 residential coordinators.
Developed community residences for the above clients in three Boston suburbs. Provided emergency
consultation on a 24-hour basis to staff dealing with crisis management in six group homes and one
sheltered workshop. Administrative responsibi]itiés included some financial management, quality
assurance, and other accountability to state authorities.

Faculty, Middlesex Community College, Bedford, MA
Instructor for an introductory group psychotherapy.course offered through the Social Work Department.

Senior Social Worker/Assistant Director, Massachusetts Tuberculosis Treatment Center I, a unit of
Middlesex County Hospital, Waltham, MA :

Functioned as second in command and chief clinical supervisor for eight interdisciplinary team members,
and implemented a six-month residential program for individuals afflicted with recurring tuberculosis and
alcoholism. Provided group and individual therapy, relaxation training.

Social Worker, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Out-Patient Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA
Employed in full-time summer position prov1d1ng out patient counseling to individuals and groups of the
MIT community.

Program Counselor/Supervisor, Massachusetts 1nstitute of Technology, MIT/Wellesley College
Upward Bound Program, Cambridge and Wellesley, MA

Major responsibilities consisted of psycho educatiof‘nal counseling of Upward Bound students, supervision
of tutoring staff, teaching, conducting evaluative research for program policy development.



2
EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE

1975-1977  Simmons College School of Social Work, Boston, MA
Cambridge-Somerville Community Mental Health: Program, MSW

1971-1975  Clark University, Worcester, MA. Received Bachelor of Arts Degree in Psychology

LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS

1979 Licensed Real Estate Broker — Massachusetts

1989 Academy of Certified Social Workers — NASW

1990 Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker - Massachusetts

1994 State of New Hampshire Certified Clinical Social Worker, MA LICSW
PLACEMENTS

1976 - 1977  Cambridge Hospital, In-Patient Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA
Individual, group, and family counseling to hospitalized patients.

1975-1976  Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Social Servjice Department, Cambridge, MA
Similar to above.

FIELD SUPERVISION

1983 -1984  Antioch/New England Graduate School, Department of Professional Psychology, Keene, NH
1983 -1984  Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH

1990 —1991  Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH

1978 -1979  Middlesex Community College, Social Work Associates Program, Bedford, MA

AWARDS _,
e Valedictorian Award received at high school graduation;
e National Institute of Mental Health Traineeship'in Social Work
o University of New Hampshire Community Devg'elopment 2003 Community Leader of the Year
e NAMI NH 2007 Annual Award for Systems Change
e Peter Medoff AIDS Housing Award 2007 '
MEMBERSHIPS

Former Chair, Governor’s State Interagency Council on Homelessness/New Hampshire Policy Academy
Former Chair, Greater Nashua Continuum of Care °

National Association of Social Workers _

Board Member, Greater Nashua Housing & Development Foundation, Inc.

Former Member, Rotary Club, Nashua, NH



CAROL J. FURLONG, LCMHC, MAC, MBA

Merrimack, New Hampsuire 03054

P AN )

SKILLS / ABILITIES / ACHiEVEMENTS PROFILE

Administration: Seasoned professional with progressive experience in diverse healthcare and educational environments,
including operations, budget control, marketing, quality assurance; r1sk management, utilization review, facility design and
management, human resources, and strategic planning.

Management: Self-starter with strong planning, controlling, organizing and leadership skills. Effectively manages resources
and ensures compliance with established policies and procedures. Skilled in identifying and troubleshooting problem areas and
unplementlng solutions. Developed comprehensive Quality Management program. Restructured billing, triage and customer
service systems resulting in improved productivity and efficiency. Extensive managed care experience.

Human Resources: Skilled in recruiting, interviewing and selecting top personnel. Effective trainer, develops staff abilities
to full potential. Motivates and retains employees using the mentor approach. Managed and supervised training and development
of 100 personnel. Knowledgeable regarding multicultural issues. Effectively trained and prepared counseling professionals.

Communication: Articulate speaker and effective negotiator. Writes with strength, clarity and style. Natural ability to work
with others. Consistently develops good rapport with staff, professionals, staff managers and community. Works well as part of a
team or independently. Wrote and published several training and procedural manuals.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

VICE PRESIDENT OF OPERATIONS 2005-present

Harbor Homes, Inc. Nashua, NH

Senior management position overseeing residential and administrative staff of approximately 250 employees and coordinating a
continuum of service delivery for those experiencing mental illness and homelessness and other populations. Develops and updates
program plans, assures monitoring of implementation and develops/implements corrective actions as indicated. Provides
education/consultation to staff, other agencies or community groups. Provides direct or indirect supervision to a clinical staff of
approxunately 40 Program Managers and MIMS workers. Assures quahty/approprlateness of critical aspects of care through
ingoing monitoring.

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2003 - 2005

Community Council of Nashua Nashua, NH

Developed and updated program plans, assures monitoring of 1mp1qmentat10n and develops/implements corrective actions as
indicated. Provides education/consultation to staff, other agencies or community groups. Provides supervision to a clinical staff of
approximately 40 therapists, case managers and MIMS workers. Develops Regional Planning of adult services. Assures
quality/appropriateness of critical aspects of care through ingoing monitoring.

DIRECTOR OF OUTCOMES & SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT 1999-2003

Community Council of Nashua ' Nashua, NH

Developed and maintained a Quality Management Program complying with NCQA and JCAHO standards. Monitored and
supervised utilization review, evaluating the medical necessity, case management and continuation of care. Developed effective
medical records protocols. Directs training and development function for the agency. Coordinated efforts resulting in highly
successful JCAHO survey. Coordinates Customer Service and complaints process.

ADJUNCT FACULTY 1990-2005

Rivier College Nashua, NH

Graduate Counseling Program — Instruct graduate counseling students in a variety of courses to include Group Therapy,
Counseling Techniques, Substance Abuse Counseling,, Clinical Assessment, Marriage & Family Therapy, and Prescriptive
Behavioral Management Techniques. Have facilitated several Independent Study courses in a variety of topics.

PRIVATE PRACTICE 1999-Present
Nashua, NH
Maintains private practice of approximately 40 clients. Coordinates care with primary care physicians and others. Coordinates

treatment with managed care companies.
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DIRECTOR OF REGIONAL BEHAVIORAL HEALTHQM . 1997-1999

The Hitchcock Clinic Bedford, NH

Developed and maintained a Quality Management Program complying with NCQA standards for four Behavioral Health sites.
Developed and implemented program expansion. Identified staffing réquirements and facilitated subsequent downsizing to ensure
cost effectiveness. Liaison between the Clinic and insurance plans. Monitored and supervised utilization review for the Southern
Region, evaluating the medical necessity, case management and continuation of care. Recommended by insurance reviewers to
other organizations for consultation services in order to assist these agen01es in their compliance processes. Developed effective
medical records protocols.

COORDINATOR OF MULTICULTURAL COUNSELING PROGRAM 1998-1999

Rivier College Nashua, NH

Coordinated the Bilingual/Multicultural Counseling Program in both guidance counseling and mental health fields. Recruits and
advises professional students from local multicultural agencies. Developing a diversity-training program for use in area schools
and businesses to enhance multicultural awareness. Instructor in Graduate Counseling Program.

CLINICAL DIRECTOR - 1990-1997

The Hitchcock Clinic Nashua, NH

Developed and implemented program policies and procedures. Managed FTE and budgetary control while providing effective
leadership to the staff. Improved out-referral system, while reducing out-referral expenditures. Developed cooperative
collaboration measures with insurers' UM Departments. Supervised a staff of thirty employees. Senior member of the Regional
Management Team, and also a member of the Nashua Medical Group Board of Governors.

PROGRAM DIRECTOR 1988-1990

Partial Hospitalization Program, Brookside Hospital Nashua, NH

Developed program components, structure, policies and procedures. Implemented FTE and budgetary control and supervised
treatment staff. Initiated referral network and maintained marketing and referral relationships within the Greater Nashua
community. Facilitated groups, provided case management and 1nd1v1dua1 counseling including initial assessments. Monitored
case management and utilization review processes with insurers.

PROGRAM DIRECTOR - SUBSTANCE ABUSE CLINIC 1985-1988

Department of the Army West Germany

Developed comprehensive preventive substance abuse program. Coordinated efforts with schools, civic organizations, civilian
agencies and military organizations in order to integrate preventive education efforts. Supervised clinical and support staff of two
treatment clinics. Maintained referral relationships with commanders. -

ARMY COMMUNITY SERVICE DIRECTOR 1983-1985

Department of the Army West Germany

Developed comprehensive community support agency. Responsible for staffing and budgetary concerns. Composed informational
publications, prepared financial and statistical reports and submitted budget requests to the U. S. government for agency funding.
Responsible for FAP (Family Advocacy Program).

EDUCATION
MASTERS OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION DEGREE
IN HEALTHCARE ADMINISTRATION - 2001
Rivier College, Nashua

MASTERS OF SCIENCE IN EDUCATION (COUNSELING) - 1986
University of Southern California

BACHELORS IN EDUCATION (SPECIAL EDUCATION) -1974
Westfield State College, Westfield, MA

LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS

LICENSED CLINICAL MENTAL HEALTH COUNSELOR
New Hampshire Llcense #100 — 1998

MASTERS ADDICTION COUNSELOR CERTIFICATION
1997



Ana Pancine

= v ™ 23 Nashua NH ' - N

Career Focus

Finance Professional with extensive experience in audit requirements, budget and forecasting,
operational and variance analysis, financial reporting and full cycle of month-end closing on a non-profit
and for-profit organization. Proficient with a W|de variety of software applications, including SAP, SAGE
and custom accounting software.

Recent
Accomplishments

o  Prepared/Assisted on local hospitals contract with Agency to receive maximum reimbursement for
new project.

e Achieved revenue objective by implementing cost-cutting measures.

e  Assessed accounting system structures and converted acquired company’s accounting system to
SAGE and SAP.

*  Reviewed posting and documents for correct entry, mathematical accuracy and proper coding and

eliminated all errors showing on metrics and financial reports.

Developed several financia! reports for the organization to ensure financial transparency.

L]
. Uncovered $500,000 process errors with development of multiple source analytical auditing tools.
e  Maintain an error free audit with no management letters or comments for four years.
o Completed several implementation changes within the financial department.
Experience Harbor Homes Inc. Nashua, NH November 2007 — Present

Financial Specialist

¢ Budget development for 92 cost centers and 8 affiliated agency with annual expenses and revenue
of $22m total

o Prepare operational and variance analysns to present to CEO and board members for all agencies

o Internal and external reports for several Sgate & Federal projects.

e Prepare complex financial statements, internal/annual reports for CEO, VP of Finance, BOD &
State/Federal Agencies.

o Prepare profit and loss, general ledger, tnal balance reports for all 92 cost centers on a monthly
basis

o Knowledge of planning technigues, test and sampling methods invoived in conducting audits.

o Extensive experience with Financial Statements audits, reviews, compilations and audits for
Governmental organizations (A-133).

e Managed annual external audit resulting in no findings and no management comments on A-133
audits.

e Assist VP of Finance on all necessary tasks and current back up for this position.

e Maintained accurate accounts including cash inventory, prepaid, fixed assets, accounts payable,
accrued expenses and line of credit transactions.

* Responsible for tracking and ensure all financial reports deadlines are met.

e Prepare all budgets for Development Department to be submitted for competitive State, Federal and
Local grant applications

* Review all financial requirements and financial accuracy for new and renewed contracts

Hewlett-Packard Various locations  August 2001 - November 2007

Service Resource Coordinator December 2006 - November 2007
e Accountable for all metric reports for the PER Event team in a monthly basis.

Responsible for revenue booking for two districts.

Accountable to update, present and distribfute all reports related to the department.

Provide quality reports for upper managemfent to review the progress of the team.

Responsible for all the billings for Latin Amiérica and prepared currency translation reporting.

Americas Business Analyst February 2004 — December 2006

e Manage ten cost centers with annual expenses of $9m and revenue of $18m, forecast on a quarterly
basis, generate expense and revenue accruals, and establish budgetary guidelines for team
members.

o Variance reporting monthly for +/-1 % of forecasted to report to senior management.

e Compile, reconcile, and obtain approval from customer for account metrics on a monthly basis.

¢ Maintain global reporting of 200 employees with specific emphasis on geographic alignment,
individual line counts, and organizational charts for account utilization and resource mapping

e Approve time card for temporary employees, main contact for temporary agencies and responsible

for hiring/releasing of temporary employees.
e Main contact for all customers located in the Latin America territory.
» Provided Financial Support for account closing.

References Available upbn request




Quality Controller/ System Support Administrator June 2003 - February 2005
+ Main contact between administrators and system support to prioritize technical errors.
» Responsible for weekly, monthly and quarterly quality review reporting.
+ Responsible for weekly and monthly geography reports.
e Maintain all employee related spreadsheets updated.
« Manage quality review reports to ensure policies and procedures are being followed.
o Mentoring new hires in their assigned posjtions.
e Communicating with manager for tools necessary for team.
+ Categorize and notify managers of any peirformance issues.
» Provide support for team members with problem solving.
Per Event Administrator August 2001 — June 2003
e  Responsible for billing revenue.
o  General office filing and organlzatlon
e  Data Entry.
e  Assisting customer needs.
e  Solving any customer issues.
»  Revenue booking and customer assistance for Latin America/Caribbean territory.
e  Assistant and service provided for all customer located in the Latin America/Caribbean/Europe
territory

Skills o Windows 98/2000/XP/7 » PEARS/CHAMPAWFM
¢ SIFT - Financial Database o NCAS/SAP
« Microsoft Office ¢ SAGE - MIP
¢ Fundware/F9 ¢ Fluent in Portuguese

Education Hesser College :
« Bachelor of Science, Business Administration —concentration in Finance — Oct 2005
* Trained Medical Translator — Portuguese
¢ Fluent in Portuguese and Proficient in Spanlsh
Southern NH University
¢ Pursuing MBA and Financial/International Business Certification.

References Available upon request




Brian Boyer
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OBJECTIVE

Actively seeking a Program Director position utilizing experience and skills in delivering excellent
work ethic and leadership, optimizing growth and management efficiency.

Highly motivated and dedicated individual, with dynamic leadership, training and program management career,
delivering quality based growth and management procedures. Consistently achieving strong record of outperforming
budget quotas, developing new business, and strengthening community relationships, with advanced knowledge of
relationships, and energized by new challenges. Expert training, presentation, negotiation, and communication skills,
with keen abilities in planning, goal setting, strategy implementa{tion, and follow-up.

Expert Program Management= Association Development @ High-Impact Marketing
o Training Liaison @ Community Involvement = Risk Management

QUALIFICATIONS

o Well-rounded and diligent job executer; focus and energetic, able to establish rapport with, and elicit loyalty from,
superiors, colleagues, and subordinates '

= Extensive experience in the human Services industry, community outreach and business development.

o Proven success in initiating, promoting, and maintaining strong interpersonal relations with the ability to transact
in courteous, professional, and tactful manner; thrive in both independent and group work environments

= Detail-oriented, efficient, and organized professional, with exfensive experience in management in highly stressful
and fast-paced environments, with emerging and multiple responsibilities

o Experienced trainer in the areas of effective communication, relationship building, team building, child
development, child abuse prevention, and behavior management strategies

o Certified instructor in conflict resolution, crisis intervention, éffective coaching, and American Red Cross First
Aid/CPR.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Somerset Swim and Fitness ® NASHUA, NH
MEMBERSHIP & SALES DIRECTOR Aug 2007-Present

o Responsible for the company’s daily operations with an empHasis on sales, B2B sales, and membership growth
= Leverage and escalate involvement in the community and successfully expand club’s visibility
= Conduct staff trainings to develop and promote high level of customer service

o Exceeded sales goals, and increased program participation in the key areas of personal training and aquatics in
first six months of service

. Assist in facility, risk, fiscal and budget management

YMCA of Greater Nashua ® NASHUA, NH
SENIOR COMMUNITY OUTREACH DIRECTOR Oct 2000-Aug 2007

o Primary responsibility to increase membership and program participation through increasing Business
relationships, and community collaborations including the development of new and increasing existing financial
support

Page 1 of 2



Brian Bézer

Nashua, New Han{pshire 03063 « ©+ ~°° T~~~ aEna
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o Under the management of the Associate Executive Director, résponsible for developing, supporting and managing
over 100 staff in all areas of programming

o Scheduled, coordinated, monitored and assessed all association trainings.
o Created, marketed, budgeted, and evaluated new and existing programs and development initiatives

° Generated a new department with $150,000 annual income and assisted other departments by tripling the
registrations of targeted membership in the first two years
© Defined needs of the community through extensive networking and collaborating with community leaders
including government agencies, non-profits, community groups, and task forces
~ o Produced hundreds of business and personal relationships in the community resulting to an affluent balance of the
budget

o Exceeded goals in the area of fund raising, and served as a leader for the Nashua YMCA in grant writing and
development and strategic planning

Community Council of Nashua, N. H., Inc. ®* NASHUA, NH
FACILITATOR / SENIOR CASE MANAGER / TRAINER Oct 1995-Present

o Work as part-time educator, trainer, and facilitator providing effective approach to working with youth and
families. '

a Provided training to staff and community members in the areas of conflict resolution, effective communication,
and effective program development strategies

o Served on community task forces and collaborated with community businesses and agencies to create more
comprehensive community programs

= Provide intensive Case Management and Mental Illness Management and support to children and their families

= Served on the quality assurance and risk management teams

o Coordinated with other members of the Intensive Community-Based Support Systems Team, therapists,

psychiatrists, families, and community members regarding problem solving, designing treatment plans, and
mental illness management

Nashua Youth Council, Inc. ® NASHUA, NH
YOUTH ATTENDER PROGRAM COUNSELOR Mar 1996-Nov 1996

o Functioned as a Counselor in an area program for runaway youths designed to reunite clients with parents
= Created rapport with clients to evaluate needs; provided support to senior counselors
o Presented suitable referrals in attempt to eliminate need for court intervention and minimize recidivism

o Accomplished and finished required paper work for programE coordinator

EDUCATION

Master’s Level Coursework in Family Counseling
Rivier College, Nashu‘a, NH: 2000

Bachelor of Arts in Sociology
University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH: 1994

Page 2 of 2
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Christopher Gartland

Obiective

Obtain an Operations Coordinator, Program Manager, or Case Management position which utilizes
the skills of over 25 years experience in the areas of health, mental health, substance/alcohol abuse,
Department of Corrections and homelessness.

Experience
Oct, 2010 - Present Harbor Homes, Inc. Nashua, NH
Sheiter Coordinator/Program Manager Maple Arms Emergency Shelter

Responsible for Managing the operation of a 25 bed homeless shelter including family unit.
[ncluding case management and supervision of case management of ali shelter guests, resolving
complaints from shelter guest, assuring that house rules are adhered to, ensuring environment
meets the regulations of state and city for an emergency shelter. Reviewing and completing all
HMIS paperwork and assuring all information is reported. Completing all weekly census,
quarterly reports, and annual repotts per state/city regulations. Enstring adequate amount of
supplies; i.e. Bedding, food, etc. for shelter guests. Provide 24 hr. on-call coverage.

Hire, Provide Corrective Action and Counseling for over 15 staff, aH shifts and responsible for the
Training and Supcrvzswn of staff; including staff evaluations.

Perform Intake and Assessment of all shelter Guests.

Work closely with Nashua Department of Corrections and the particular needs of their
clients at the shelter, Ensure that all DOC shelter guests comply with Parole and Probation
rules. Report all violations to Parole/Probation Officers as requested in Releases of
[nformation.

Work with Veterans Administration and their Resources.

Work directly with the Community Mental Health Agencies so to ensure that all guests with
Mental Health issues receive the necessary care. Monitor self-administration of medications.
Work directly with the Harbor Clinic at HHI so to ensure that g'f'uest receive necessary health
Services. Teach Life Skills and Symptom Management. Crisis Intervention as needed.

Develop Recovery Plans for all shelter guests with substance and alcohol abuse and refer
To Outpatient and Inpatient Programs as needed,

Responsible for managing and processing urine drug tests and breathalyzer tests to shelter
guests who appear to be under the influence, in order to prowde safety and sober shelter and
documentation, and Responsible for all warnings issued to she]ter guests and supervising all
exits for violations of Shelter Rules. ‘

Educate shelter guests who qualify for benefits and support them in applying for these
benefits; i.e. SSI, SSDI, APDT, TANAF, Medicaid, Medicare, and Prescription Assistance.

Employment assistance to shelter guests and assistance with obtaining housing,

Refer guest who are interested to faith based resources.

Attend Weekly Mid-Management meetings and City Outreach for Homeless Meetings
And plan/provide services at all city wide events for homeless

Train and supervise all volunteers and interns
Fostering and maintaining relationships with outside resources and educating staff



November 1999 — Harbor Homes, Inc, Nashua, NH
October 2010

Functionatl Support Service Worker, IMR Practitioner, amﬁ Resident Coordinator
for Chestnut St. Group Home.

= FSS: provide therapeutic behavioral services, to the severe and persistent mentally ill, in areas:
ADL’s, Interpersonal Skills, Adaption to Change, and Task Performance. Crisis Intervention as
needed, Medication Services, and Community Integration. Fire Safety Drills.

8 Work closely with Mental Health Agency as a team member so as to provide the highest quality
of services to the client. Advocate for clients needs. Develop and implement ISP with team.

= Work with clients on IMR in regards to supporting them in setting their own goals and steps to
follow through to reach these goals, utilizing the IMR Handbook. -
Staff for a group home with 10 residents, providing FSS services, and support with ADL,
Interpersonal, Adaption to Change, and Task Performance. Responsible for monitoring of
self~-administration and Certified Medication Administrator of inedications, and crisis
intervention as needed. Also, responsible for accompanying clients to all medical
appointments, and monitoring follow up, as well as community integration; i.e. groceries
Assisted Program Manager in ensuring that enviromment of care met all state and HUD
Reguldtmns And prepara for all inspections by State and HUD ‘to ensure certification.

March 1998 — June 2000 Mass. General Hospital : Boston, MA
Operations Coordinator

= Responsible for the environment of care for 2 medical units and psychiatric unit, ensuring that
environment of care meets all standards of Public Health and Safety, and JACHO regulations.
Responsible that all units are adequately supplied with ali necessary medical supplies.
Responsible for reviewing systems and making changes to more adequately meet patient /unit needs.
= Responsible for the hiring, firing, training, counseling and direct supervision for Support Staff
and Unit Service Providers on all assigned units. Include leading Staff Meetings each week,
resolve conflicts with other staff/departments, on-going training of staﬁ and scheduling 24 hour
coverage. Work with Patients and Families to ensure satisfaction.
Foster and maintain relationships with all departments in patient care services and work
closely to provide the highest quality of service for patients.
Work with admitting and D/C case managers to ensure the smooth transition of patients
either to inpatient or home.
Responsible for training all staff in preparation for all inspections, mvludmg Public Health and
Safety and JACHO. Also responsible for ensuring units are prepared for inspections.
Work closely as a member of a Management Triad including: Nurse Manager, Clinical
Specialist In ensuring that all needs of patients are met.
in the Inpatient Psychiatric Unit responsible for tracking all legal information on patients \
Commitments, Voluntary and Involuntary Admissions. Ensuring that all patients complete
All Legaf paperwork and knowledge of their rights to legal counsel.

May 1990 -- March 1998 Mount Aubuwrn Homecare Belmont, MA
Patient Care Coordinator

Intake, and scheduling all Nursing, PT, OT, Speech Therapist and Wound Care Specialist
As needed. Ensure all documentation on intakes compiete. Obtam all Physician Medical
Orders. Provide Supportive Services to ali clinicians. Medical Supply Management.
Proficient in Medical Terminology and Assist Business Staff w1_th completion of all
Documentation for Medical Insurance. Supervise HHA staff and assignments.

Work with families and staff resolution of complaints. Review Medical Records.

Assist with preparation for all JACHO and Dept, Of Public Health Inspections,



Education
BA in Philosophy/Psychology  St. John’s Seminary College  Brighton, MA
Apostolic Ministry: Haley House: Ministry to the Homeless Boston, MA

Paralegal Certificate Bentley College Waltham,MA
Awards

1862 1 Recipient: Mount Auburn Homecare Employee of the Month

2000 Mass. General Hospital: Partnership in Excellence Award

2008 Harbor Homes, Inc.. Adam Gurekis Award for Outstanding

Functional Support Provider.

References Available Upon Request
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MELANSON HEATH & Company, PC

CEerTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
MANAGEMENT ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Harbor Homes, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Harbor
Homes, Inc., a (nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2012, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows, for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the reéponsibility of the Organization’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement pres-
entation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Harbor Homes, Inc., as of June 30, 2012, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we also have issued our report
dated January 8, 2013 on our consideration of the Organization’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its- compllance with certain provisions of
laws, regulatlons contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reportlng and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opin-
ion on the internal control over financial reportlng or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

102 Perimeter Road — + 149 Hanover Street » 10 New England Business Center Drive, Suite 107+ 51 Davis Street, Suite [« 302 Surry Road
Nashua, NH 03063 Manchester, NH 03101 Andover, MA 01810 Greenfield, MA 01301 Ellsworth, ME 04605

800-282-2440 « www.melansonheath.com



statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated: in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our
report dated September 10, 2012 on our consideration of the Project’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govern-
ment Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

Molarson  fHeath *Cawfw“a\ £ <.

Nashua, New Hampshire
September 10, 2012



ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts

Promises to give

Due from HUD Programs

Due from related organizations

Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation

Non-current Assets:
Restricted deposits and funded reserves
Due from HUD Programs
Due from related organizations
Beneficial interest
Total Non-current Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Due to program operations
Due to related organizations
Line of credit
Current portion of mortgages payable
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities:
Due to program operations
Due to related organizations
Security deposits
Mortgages payable, tax credits
Mortgages payable, net of current portion
Mortgages payable, deferred
Total Long Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Unrestricted Net Assets (Deficit):
HUD programs
Program operations
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Total Net Assets (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Statement of Financial Position

$

$

$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

June 30,2012

HUD | HUD VI Program
Program Program Operations Total
10,581 3 99 3 778,900 3 789,580
2,274 8,151 735,916 746,341
- - 25,000 25,000
- - 349 349
- - 115,338 115,338
- - 4,839 4,839
12,855 8,250 1,660,342 1,681,447
78,478 307,862 13,093,058 13,479,398
89,404 60,855 125,868 276,127
- - 64,302 64,302
- - 340,861 340,861
- - 116,175 116,175
89,404 60,855 647,206 797,465
180,737 '$ 376,967 $ 15,400,606 $ 15,958,310
2,179 $ 455 $ 287,678 $ 290,312
1,450 6,031 370,714 378,195
349 - - 349
- - 98,707 98,707
- - 809,999 809,999
11,689 3,931 187,232 202,852
15,667 10,417 1,754,330 1,780,414
- 64,302 - 64,302
- - 75,000 75,000
2,125 798 37,642 40,565
- - 184,497 184,497
176,441 238,496 5,156,420 5,571,357
- - 4,706,134 4,706,134
178,566 303,596 10,159,693 10,641,855
194,233 314,013 11,914,023 12,422,269
(13,496) 62,954 - 49,458
- - 3,462,173 3,462,173
- - 24,410 24,410
(13,496) 62,954 3,486,583 3,536,041
180,737 '$ 376,967 $ 15,400,606 $ 15,958,310




Public Support and Revenue:
Public Support:
Federal grants
State, local, and other grants
Donations in-kind
Donations
Net assets released from restriction
Total Public Support

Revenue;
Department of Housing

and Urban Development
Veterans Administrative grants
Medicaid - Federal and State
Client fees:

Rent and service charges, net

Food and common area fees
Cutside rent
Miscellaneous
Employment projects
Sliding fee and free care
Medicare revenue
Fundraising revenue
Gain on dispesal of fixed assets
Management fees
Interest
Unrealized gain/(loss)
Bad debts

Total Revenue

Total Public Support and Revenue

Expenses:
Program
Administration
Fundraising
Total Expenses
Change in net assets

Net Assets (Deficit), Beginning of Year

Net Assets (Deficit), End of Year

$

HARBOR HOMES, INC.
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Unrestricted Net Assets Temporarily
HUD | HUD VI Program Restricted
Program Program Operations Net Assets Total
- $ - $ 2,455999 3 - $ 2,455,999
- - 429,466 - 429,466
- - 179,908 - 179,906
- - 86,202 9,500 95,702
- 5,291 (5.291) -
- - 3,156,864 4,209 3,161,073
85,521 6,737 2,441,785 - 2,534,043
- - 978,269 - 978,269
- - 825,432 - 825,432
26,702 1,600 293,382 - 321,684
- - 67,200 - 67,200
- - 170,600 - 170,600
- 85,883 8,119 - 94,002
- - 66,621 - 66,621
- - 20,531 - 20,531
- - 5,036 - 5,036
- - 13,124 - 13,124
- - 7,500 - 7,500
- - 2,805 - 2,805
96 - 265 - 361
- - (966) - {968)
- - (49,404) - (49,404)
112,319 94,220 4,850,299 - 5,056,838
112,319 94,220 8,007,163 4,209 8,217,911
86,600 29,935 7,081,082 - 7,197,617
13,573 1,331 1,047,065 - 1,061,969
- - 183,057 - 183,057
100,173 31,266 8,311,204 - 8,442,643
12,146 62,954 (304,041) 4,209 (224,732)
(25,642) - 3766214 20,201 3,760,773
(13,496) $ 62,954 $_ 3,462,173 $_ 24410 $_3,536,041

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Expenses:
Accounting fees
Advertising and printing
Client services and assistance
Client transportation
Conference and conventions
Confract labor
Employee benefits
Enabling services
Equipment rental
Food
Garbage and trash removal
Grants
information technology
Interest expense - mortgage
Interest expense - other
Journals and publications
Legal fees
Medical and clothing
Membership dues
Office supplies
Operating and maintenance
Operational supplies
Other expenditures
Payroll taxes
Postage/shipping
Professional fees
Property and liability insurance
Property taxes
Rent expense
Salary and wages
Snow removal
Staff development
Staff expense
Staff transportation
Telephone/communications
Utilities
Vehicle expenses

Total Expenses Before Depreciation

Depreciation

Total Expenses

HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended Juné 30, 2012

Program Administration Fundraising Total
$ - $ 34,433 $ - $ 34,433
6,456 187 4,958 11,601
29,962 9 - 29,971
19,814 32 683 20,529
18,701 19,393 161 38,255
61,709 13,868 - 75,577
499,946 151,283 20,859 672,088
3,380 - - 3,380
1,351 4127 - 5478
59,553 - - 59,553
11,876 2,641 - 14,517
262,435 - - 262,435
139,300 10,161 - 149,461
305,005 33,110 - 338,115
468 31,032 - 31,500

800 241 - 1,041
11,087 78,509 - 89,596
186,773 200 - 186,973
28,077 - 935 29,012
41,000 6,845 2,021 49,866
137,338 11,757 50 149,145
55,396 3,908 - 59,304
8,924 15,026 - 23,950
221,773 48,654 12,244 282,671
2,755 4428 371 7,554
94,867 979 - 95,846
69,593 7,340 - 76,933
14,108 - - 14,108
1,700,280 - - 1,700,280
2,393,010 450,660 134,462 2,978,132
1,086 - - 1,086
7,351 - - 7,351
6,024 2,763 184 8,971
17,219 12,057 1,133 30,409
71,962 10,731 3,519 86,212
225,268 18,427 1,477 245,172
22,597 735 - 23,332
6,737,244 973,536 183,057 7,893,837
460,373 88,433 - 548,806
$ 7,197,817 $_1,061,969 $ 183,057 $ 8,442,643

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.




HARBOR HOMES, INC.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Loss on beneficial interest
(Increase) Decrease In:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Deferred revenue
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Restricted deposits and funded reserves
Security deposits
Purchase of fixed assets

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from line of credit
Proceeds from long term borrowings
Payments on long term borrowings
Net change in due to/from related organizations

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities
Net Increase
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Interest paid

Non-cash financing activities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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$

$

$
$

(224,732)

548,806
1,580

131,853
38,271

68,632
(58,004)
(1,819)

504,587

3,123
1,346

(102,539)
(98,070)

100,000
184,868
(275,356)

(181,828)

(172,316)
234,201

555,379

789,580

411,978

1,167,932



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Orqganization:

Harbor Homes, Inc. (the Organization)'is a nonprofit organization that creates
and provides quality residential and supportive services for persons (and their
families) challenged by mental iliness and/or homelessness in the State of
New Hampshire. Programs include mainstream housing, permanent housing,
transitional housing, and emergency shelter, as well as comprehensive
support services that include peer support programs, job training, a paid
employment program, and social and educational activities.

In addition to housing and supportive services, the Organization runs a health
care clinic that is a Federally QualifiedHealth Center (FQHC) offering primary
medical services to the homeless and/or low-income individuals.

Summary of Significant Accounti’nq Policies:

The following is a summary of significa:nt accounting policies of the Organiza-
tion used in preparing and presenting the accompanying financial statements.

Accounting for Contributions and Financial Statement Presentation

The Organization follows Accounting for Contributions Received and Con-
tributions Made and Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations
as required by the Financial Accountlng Standards Board Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC). Under these guidelines, the Organi-
zation is required to distinguish between contributions that increase
permanently restricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and
unrestricted net assets. It also requires recognition of contributions, including
contributed services, meeting certain criteria at fair values. These reporting
standards establish standards for financial statements of not-for-profit
organizations and require a Statement of Financial Position, a Statement of
Activities, a Statement of Cash Flows,!and a Statement of Functional
Expenses.

Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Under this basis, revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are
reported when incurred, without regard to the date of receipt or payment
of cash. Contributions are reported in accordance with FASB ASC
Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.
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Restricted and Unrestricted Revenue

Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in
unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period
in which the revenue is recognized. AII other donor-restricted contributions
are reported as increases in temporanly or permanently restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restrlctlons When a restriction expires,
temporarily restricted net assets are rqcIaSSIfled to unrestricted net assets
and reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released from
restrictions. '

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers all
highly liguid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts for receivables is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Organization’s management and
adjusted as required through the provision for doubtful accounts (bad
debt expense). In determining the amount required in the allowance
account for the year ended June 30, 2012, management has taken into
account a variety of factors.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation. Major additions and improvements are
capitalized, while ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to expense.
Depreciation is provided using the stralght-llne method over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets. Assets not in service are not depreciated.

Functional Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and activities have been sum-
marized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities and in the
Statement of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and smjpporting services benefited.

Donated Services

The Organization receives donated services from a variety of unpaid volun-
teers assisting the Organization in its programs. No amounts have been
recognized in the accompanying statement of activities because the criteria
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for recognition of such volunteer effort under generally accepted accounting
principles have not been satisfied.

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets
or that require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those
skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation,
are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Accordingly, actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Tax Status

Harbor Homes, Inc. is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(a)
of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization described in Section
501(c)(3). The Organization has also been classified as an entity that is not
a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) and qualifies for
deductible contributions.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty

in Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for
financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. FASB ASC 740-10 did not have a
material impact on the Organization’s financial statements.

The Organization’s Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt From
Income Tax) for fiscal years 2009, 2010, and 2011 are subject to examination
by the IRS, generally for three years after they were filed.

The Organization recognizes interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in
interest expense and penalties that are included within reported expenses.
During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Organization had no interest or
penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits.

Subsequent Events

In accordance with the provisions set forth by FASB ASC, Subsequent
Events, events and transactions from July 1, 2012 through January 8, 2013,
the date the financial statements were available to be issued, have been
evaluated by management for disclosure.



Concentration of Credit Risk - Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The carrying amount of the Organization's deposits with financial institutions
was $ 789,580 at June 30, 2012. The difference between the carrying
amount and the bank balance represents reconciling items such as deposits
in transit and outstanding checks, which have not been processed by the
bank at June 30, 2012. The bank balance is categorized as follows:

Insured by FDIC 3 664,587
Insured by SIPC ‘ 55,717
Uninsured and uncollateralized 406,201
Total Bank Balance $ 1,126,505

Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2012 Consists of the following:

Receivable Allowance Net
HUD | Program
Residents 3 2,274 $ - 3 2,274
Total $ 2274 $ - $ 2274
HUD VI Program
Residents $ 8,151 $ - $ 8,151
Total $ 8151 $ - $ 8151
Program Operations
Residents $ 84,457 $ (64,291) $ 20,166
Security deposits 3,739 - 3,739
Medicaid 44,857 - 44,857
Grants 584,969 - 584,969
Clinic 107,154 (34,471) 72,683
Other 9,502 - 9,502
Total $ 834,678 $ (98,762 $ 735916

Due To/From Related Orqanizatio‘ns:

Due to/from related organizations represents amounts due to and from
Harbor Homes, Inc. from related entities whereby common control is shared
with the same Board of Directors. These balances exist because certain
receipts and disbursements of the related organizations flow through the
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Harbor Homes, Inc. main operating cash account. The related organizations
and their balances at June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Due to Due From
Current;
Healthy at Home $ 79828 § -
Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force 18,879 -
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism - 98,591
Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc. - 16,107
HH Ownership, Inc. - 443
Harbor Homes |lI, Inc. - 197
Subtotal current 98,707 115,338
Non-current:
Healthy at Home ’ 75,000 -
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism - 120,000
Harbor Homes |, Inc. : - 129,269
Welcoming Light, Inc. - 91,592
Subtotal non-current ' 75,000 340,861
Total $ 173,707 $ 456,199

Although management believes the above receivables to be collectible, there
is significant risk that the non-current portion may not be.

Prepaid Expenses:

Prepaid expenses consist of the following items:

HUD | - HUD VI Program
Program Program Operations
Prepaid HRA $ - $ - $ 1,697
Prepaid gas - - 1,218
Prepaid other - - 1,924
Total $ - $ - $ 4,839

Property, Equipment and Depreciation:
A summary of the major components of property and equipment is presented
below:
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HUD | HUD Vi Program

Program Program Operations
Land $ 49484 $ 54750 $ 1,686,356
Construction in progress - - 863,531
Buildings 253,233 257,402 11,981,678
Building improvements 87,792 - 1,040,611
Software - - 320,366
Vehicles - - 202,983
Furniture and fixtures - - 161,877
Equipment 18,695 - 158,062
Medical equipment - - 65,762
Subtotal 409,204 312,152 16,481,226
Less: accumulated ‘
depreciation (330,726) (4,290) (3,388,168)

Total $ 78478 $ 307,862 $ 13,093,058

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2012 totaled $ 548,806.

The estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets are as follows:

Assets Years
Buildings and improvements 10 - 40
Software 3
Vehicles 3
Furniture and fixtures 5-7
Equipment 5-7

Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves:

Restricted deposits and funded reserves consist of escrow accounts and
reserves which are held for various purposes. The following is a summary
of the restricted accounts: ‘

HUD | HUD VI Program

Program Program Operations

Security deposits $ 2125 $ - $ 44,158

Reserve for replacements 31,076 13,900 81,710
Residual receipt deposits 56,203 46,955 -

Total $ 89,404 $ 60,855 $ 125,868
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10.

11.

Security deposits held will be returned to tenants when they vacate. Reserve
for replacement accounts are required by the Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) and the City of Nashua and are used for the
replacement of property with prior approval. Residual receipt deposits are
required by the Department of Housing and Urban Development and are to
be used at the discretion of HUD. ‘

Beneficial Interest:

The Organization has a beneficial interest in the Harbor Homes, Inc. Fund
(the Fund), a component fund of the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation’s
(the Foundation) Nashua Region. I'he Organization will receive distributions
from the Fund based on a spending all‘ocatlon which is a percentage of the
assets set by the Foundation and reviewed annually. The current spending
percentage is 4.5% of the market value (using a 20-quarter average) of the
Fund.

Accrued and Other Liabilities:

Accrued and other liabilities include th(é, following:

HUD | HUD VI Program
Program Program  Operations

Mortgage interest $ 1450 $ 1416 $ -
Payroll and related taxes - - 145,251
Compensated absences - vacation time - - 192,231
Compensated absences - personal time - - 13,380
Other j - 4,615 19,852
Total $ 1450 $ 6,031 $ 370,714

Line of Credit:

At June 30, 2012, the Organization had a $ 900,000 line of credit available
from TD Bank, N. A., secured by all asisets. The Organization is required, at
a minimum, to make monthly interest payments to TD Bank, N. A. at the
bank’s base rate plus 1.00%, adjusted daily. As of June 30, 2012 the credit
line had an outstanding balance of $ 809,999, at an interest rate of 4.25%.

In March 2012 the line of credit agreement was modified to require the
Organization to reduce the line to a low point of $ 500,000 for a minimum of
thirty consecutive days during any period over the year. The Organization
was in compliance with covenants during fiscal year 2012,

13



12. Security Deposits:

Security deposits are comprised of tenant security deposits and other mis-
cellaneous deposits. Tenant security deposits are held in a separate bank
account in the name of the Organization. These deposits will be returned to
residents when they leave the facility. . Interest will be returned to residents
who have had over one year of continuous tenancy.

13. Mortgages Payable, Tax Credits::

Mortgages payable, tax credits consist of a mortgage payable to the
Community Development Finance Authority through the Community Devel-
opment Investment Program, payable through the sale of tax credits to donor
organizations, maturing in 2020, secured by real property. This amount is
amortized over 10 years at zero percent interest. The amount due at June
30,2012 is $ 184,497.

14. Mortgages Payable:
Mortgages payable as of June 30, 2012 consisted of the following:

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings

Bank, due in monthly installments of $, 7,768, including

principal and interest at 7.05%, maturing in 2040,

secured by real property. ' ' $ 1,138,268

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings

Bank, due in monthly installments of $6,391, including

principal and interest at 6.75%, maturing in 2031,

secured by real property. 796,140

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings

Bank, due in monthly instaliments of $§5,126, including

principal and interest at 6.97%, maturing in 2036,

secured by real property. 715,322

(continued)
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(continued)

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings
Bank, due in monthly installments of $ 3,996, including
principal and interest at 4.75%, maturing in 2036,
secured by real property. '

A mortgage payable to TD Bank, due in monthly
installments of $ 5,387, including principal and interest
at 7.27%, maturing in 2025, secured by real property.

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings
Bank, due in monthly installments of $ 2,692, including
principal and interest at 4.75%, maturing in 2040,
secured by real property. '

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings
Bank, due in monthly installments of $ 2,077, including
principal and interest at 5.57% for the first five years,
then adjusting in June 2015, 2020, 2025, and 2030 to
the Federal Home Loan Bank Commurity Development
Advance Rate in effect, plus 2.75%, maturing in 2035,
secured by real property. "

A mortgage payable to Mascoma Savings Bank, fsb,
due in monthly installments of $ 1,731, including
principal and interest at 7.00% maturing in 2036,
secured by real property.

A mortgage payable to the Department of Housing and
Urban Development, due in monthly installments of
$2,385, including principal and interest at 9.25%,
maturing in 2022, secured by real property.

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings

Bank, due in monthly installments of § 1,144, including
principal and interest at a variable rate (5.61% at June
30, 2012), maturing in 2029, secured by real property.
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(continued)



(continued)

A mortgage payable to Berkadia, due in monthly

instaliments of $ 3,640, inciuding principal and interest

at a variable rate (4.75% at June 30, 2012), maturing in

2016, secured by a program building and five scattered

condominiums in Nashua, New Hampshire. 144,483

A mortgage payable to TD Bank, due in monthly
installments of $ 2,095, including principal and interest
at 6.45%, maturing in 2018, secured by real property. 132,412

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings

Bank, due in monthly installments of $ 779, including

principal and interest at 7.20% for the first five years,

then adjusting in April 2012, 2017, 2022, 2027, and

2032 to the Federal Home Loan Bank Community

Development Advance Rate in effect, plus 2225 basis

points, maturing in 2037, secured by real property. 108,262

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings
Bank, due in monthly installments of $ 1,283, including
principal and interest at 3.73%, maturing in 2035,

secured by real property. 95,440

Total 5,774,209
Less amount due within one year (202,852)
Mortgages payable, net of current portion $ 5,571,357

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
long-term debt.
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Year ‘ Amount

2013 $ 202,852
2014 214,332
2015 226,505
2016 220,714
2017 207,278
Thereafter 4,702,528

Total $ 5,774,209

Mortgages Payable, Deferred:

The Organization has deferred mortgages outstanding at June 30, 2012
totaling $ 4,706,134. These loans are;@not required to be repaid unless the
Organization is in default with the terms of the loan agreements or if

an operating surplus occurs within that program.

Several of these loans are special financing from the New Hampshire
Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA) to fund specific projects. These notes
are interest free for thirty years with pr|nc1pal payments calculated annually at
the discretion of the lender.

The following is a list of deferred mortgages payable at June 30, 2012:

Program
Operations
City of Manchester:
Somerville Street property ‘ $ 173,300
Total City of Manchester 173,300
City of Nashua:
Factory Street property 580,000
Spring Street property ‘ 491,000
Charles Street property 98,087
High Street fire system 65,000
Total City of Nashua 1,234,087
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB):
Factory Street property 400,000
Spring Street property ' 398,747
Total FHLB 798,747

17



NHHFA:

Factory Street property 1,000,000
Spring Street property 550,000
Charles Street property 50,000
Somerville Street property 900,000
Total NHHFA 2,500,000
Total Mortgages Payable, Deferred $ 4,706,134

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at
June 30, 2012:

Purpose Amount
Dalianis bricks -3 735
Dental funds 85
Medical equipment 11,722
Operation brightside 2,000
SCOAP 4,238
Veterans computers 9,630

Total $ 24410

Transactions with Related Parties:

The Organization’s clients perform janitorial services for Harbor Homes

HUD I, Il and 11, Inc., Welcoming Light, Inc., Milford Regional Counseling
Serwces Inc., Healthy at Home, Inc., Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism,
and Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force related organizations. These ser-
vices are billed to the related organizations and reported as revenues in the
accompanying financial statements.

The Organization currently has several contracts with Healthy at Home, Inc.
to receive various skilled nursing services, CNA services and companion
services for its clients. All of the contracts are based on per diem fees
ranging from $ 16 per hour for companlon services, to $ 100 per visit

for skilled nursing services.

The Organization is a corporate guarantor for Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism in relation to two mortgages on their Amherst Street property. The
guaranties consist of one mortgage in the amount of $1,879,684 and another

18



mortgage in the amount of $400,000. A subsequent payment of $100,000
was made to reduce the $400,000 mortgage to $300,000.

During the year, the Organization rented office space, under tenant at will
agreements, to Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force, and Healthy at Home,
Inc., related parties. The rental income under these agreements totaled

$ 24,816 and $ 60,000, respectively, for fiscal year 2012.

The Organization is considered a commonly controlled organization with
several related entities by way of its common board of directors. However,
management feels that the principal prerequisites for preparing combined
financial statements are not met, and therefore more meaningful separate
statements have been prepared. ’

Following are the commonly con‘trolled: organizations:

Harbor Homes |l, Inc.

Harbor Homes Ill,;Inc.

HH Ownership, Inc.

Welcoming Light, Inc.

Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc.
Healthy at Home, Inc.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism
Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force

Leases:

Operating leases

The Organization has entered into sev;eral operating leases for vehicles and
equipment which expire at various times. Total lease expense for the current
year was approximately $ 9,000.

Future minimum lease payments for vehicles and equipment are as follows:

Year : Amount
2013 1 $ 7,320
2014 7,320
2015 6,090
2016 2,200
Total $ 22930
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19.

20.

21.

Employee Benefit Plan:

After one year of continuous service with the Organization, employees may
contribute a portion of their wages to a Section 403(b) retirement plan. The
Organization matches a percentage ofi the employee contribution based on
years of service. Total matching contributions paid by the Organization for
the year ended June 30, 2012 were $ 93,679.

In addition to the retirement plan noted above, the Organization also has a
Section 457 deferred compensation plan.

Concentration of Risk:

The Organization receives 31% of its révenue from the Department of
Housing and Urban Development.

Fair Value Measurements:

FASB ASC, Fair Value Measurements; provides guidance for using fair
value to measure assets and Iiabilities.f Fair Value Measurements applies
whenever other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be
measured at their fair market value. The standard does not expand the use
of fair value in any new circumstances; Under Fair Value Measurements,
fair value refers to the price that would be received from the sale of an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market partici-
pants as of the measurement date. Fair Value Measurements clarifies the
principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions market partici-
pants would use when pricing the asset or liability and establishes a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the |nformat|on used to develop those assumptions.

Under Fair Value Measurements, the Organization categorizes its fair value
estimates based on a hierarchical framework associated with three levels of
price transparency utilized in measunng financial instruments at fair value.
Classification is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value of the instrument. The three levels are as follows:

e Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at
the measurement date. The types of financial instruments included in
Level 1 are highly liquid instrum:ents with quoted prices;

e Level 2 - Inputs from active mar}_kets, other than quoted prices for
identical instruments, are used to model fair value. Significant inputs
are directly observable from active markets for substantially the full
term of the asset or liability beinb valued; and
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e Level 3 - Pricing inputs significant to the valuation are unobservable.
Inputs are developed based on the best information available; how-
ever, significant judgment is required by management in developing
the inputs. :

The estimated fair value of the Organization’s financial instruments is -
presented in the following table:

Carrying Value Fair Value Level One Level Two Level Three
Beneficial interest $ 116,175 § 116,175 $ - $ - $ 116,175
Total assets $ 116,175 § 116,175  $ - $ - $ 116,175
Line of credit $ 809,999 $ 809,999 $ - $ 809,999 % -
Mortgages
payable, tax 1
credits 184,497 184,497 - - 184,497
Mortgages
payable 5,774,209 5,774,209 - 5,774,209 -
Mortgages ;
payable, deferred 4,706,134 4,706,134 - 4,706,134 -
Total liabilities $ 11474839 $ 11,474,é39 $ - $ 11,290,342 $ 184,497
Fair Value Measurements
Using Significant Unobservable Inputs
Level 3
Mortgages
Beneficial Payable, Tax
Interest Credits
Beginning balance June 30, 2011 $§ 117,755 $ 140,940
Advances 10,130 64,600
Reductions (11,710) (21,043)
Transfers in to Level 3 , - -

Ending balance June 30, 2012 $ 116,175 $ 184,497

22. Healthcare Clinic:

Patient service revenue is recorded ‘asg services provided. The Healthcare
Clinic (The Clinic) establishes fees for services to patients based on a sliding
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fee scale. Contractual allowances are. recorded based on patients served in
the period the related services are rendered.

The Clinic has a policy of providing free care to patients who are unable to
pay. Such patients are identified based on financial information obtained from
the patients prior to the services being rendered. The approximate amount of
free care services provided was $ 150000 for the year ended June 30, 2012.
The Clinic billed a third-party payer approximately $ 35,000 during the fiscal
year.

Patient accounts receivable are recorded less allowances for doubtful
accounts and net of contractual aIIowances The Clinic provides for losses on
patient accounts receivable using the allowance method. Receivables are
considered impaired if full payments are not expected in accordance with
contractual terms. The net balance as of June 30, 2012 was $ 87,683.
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